
A

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

Castle Control Board
Annual Report 

2019



B

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

N.N. Mapisa-Nqakula
Minister of Defence and  

Military Veterans, MP



1

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019View of the Castle from what used to be the Van der Stel Garden.



2

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

Twenty-six thousand visitors streamed through the Castle’s doors for the  
2018 Ramadaan for All festival.
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Although this Khoi-kraal, that fell into disrepair and is therefore no longer standing,  
the indelible mark it left on a re-imagined Castle landscape, will linger forever...
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1. PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION

REGISTERED NAME: Castle Control Board

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: c/o Castle and Darling Streets Cape Town 8001

POSTAL ADDRESS: P.O. Box 1 Cape Town 8001

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S: 027 21 787 1339

FAX NUMBER: 027 21 787 1089

EMAIL ADDRESS: ceo@castleofgoodhope.co.za

WEBSITE ADDRESS: www.castleofgoodhope.co.za

EXTERNAL AUDITORS: AGSA 

BANKERS: ABSA 

BOARD SECRETARY: Mr Derek Williams

2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

BBBEE Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

ED/CEO Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

TR Treasury Regulations

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

SMME Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises

SCM Supply Chain Management

CCB Castle Control Board

DOD Department of Defence

DMV Department of Military Veterans

MOD&MV Minister of Defence and Military Veterans

UNESCO United Nations Education, Scientific and Cultural Organization
PANSALB Pan South African Language Board

CGH Castle of Good Hope

ICMP Integrated Conservation Management Plan
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3. FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON

I am honoured to present my 
second annual report as Chair-
person of the Castle Control 
Board. After settling in, this 
year has been much more ex-
citing if not tumultuous than 
the last one. Despite a few 
operational challenges, I am 
proud to report that the Board 
has overseen yet another suc-
cessful year in the life of one of 
our government’s smaller, but 
vibrant public entities. 

The year started out on a 
somewhat sour note caused 
by hitherto unfounded alle-
gations of corporate infringe-
ments against the CCB as well as attempts 
to wind down the Castle Military Muse-
um Foundation. In both cases, the Board, 
through decisive interventions, managed to 
effectively address the concerns at hand.  

Providing our full-cooperation in respect of 
the Office of the Inspectorate-General’s inde-
pendent probe into the allegations, the investi-
gation team did not find any prevalence of the 
so-called “Serious allegations of mismanage-
ment, financial irregularities and other man-
agement concerns” reported in the media and 
raised at the Portfolio-Committee for Defence 
and Military Veterans in March 2018. Instead, 
the Board, through its own robust internal con-
trol and administrative systems, dealt with two 
staff members who made themselves guilty 
of misconduct. Both were successfully trialled 
and dismissed from our organization .

As far as the Castle Military Museum Founda-
tion is concerned, I can positively state that de-
spite threats of litigation, this important Castle 
stakeholder (with its philanthropists and sub-
stantial National Lotteries Commission fund-
ing) and the Board are now aligned to work 
together to strengthen the only fully-fledged 
military museum in South Africa. We have 

agreed on clear actions against 
tight timeframes, and I am con-
fident that sanity will prevail 
and that the two parties will 
cooperate and collaborate for 
the overall betterment of the 
Castle of Good Hope. 

A third, related matter, deals 
with the going concern sta-
tus of the organization. In this 
respect, I am proud to report 
that through a mixture of sheer 
determination, cost-curtail-
ment and a prudent business 
culture implemented under 
the watchful eyes of our Au-
dit and Risk Committee, the 

CCB has managed to manoeuvre itself out of a  
difficult cash flow dilemma. An unintended 
consequence was the transfer of pressure 
on our contracting human resource com-
plement; but it has created us the breathing 
space to engage the new executive author-
ity and Department of Defence on a firmer 
footing. Although the CCB’s going concern 
status is intact for the present, we have reg-
istered our urgent need for a nominal opera-
tional subsidy for the organization. This will 
allow us to amplify our delivery impact. 

Allow me to now highlight some of our signif-
icant achievements this year:

• An unqualified audit opinion from the 
AGSA. What is noteworthy about this 
achievement, is that the CCB was operat-
ing under considerable financial, human 
resource and other constraints. 

• The appointment of the gardening and 
maintenance service provider via the 
DOD’s Logistics’ Division has witnessed 
a remarkable, positive transformation of 
the Castle environs thereby overturning 
the wave of negative festive season re-
porting on the aesthetic condition of the 
Castle. 

Board Chairman
Lt Gen JS Mbuli
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• Clear signals that the Castle, previously a 
symbol of armed colonial conquest and 
apartheid oppression, has managed to 
open its doors to an inclusive, multi-cul-
tural and diverse visitor audience. The 15 
innovative programmes organized with 
and for military veteran formations, 25 
programmes for diverse women, youth 
and community groups and well as the 
24 non-commercial, cultural events host-
ed, bears testimony to this healing, learn-
ing and nation-building mandate of the 
Board. In the process we have built long-
term, working relationships with Robben 
Island Museum, Pan South African Lan-
guage Board, Cape Tour Guide Associa-
tion, Iziko Museums of SA, South African 
Heritage Resources Agency, St Dunstan’s 
Association for SA War-Blinded Veter-
ans, Cape Town Tourism, Nelson Mandela 
Foundation, the Cape Town Highlanders 
Trust, South African Religious Forum, the 
First Nations Foundation, CONTRALESA, 
MTN - to name but a few. 

• Despite an overall decline of 10% in the 
Cape’s tourism figures, the Castle still 
attracted 201,756 visitors translating 
into concomitant revenue collections of  
R5,7 million. During this time, we also 
managed to host 52 commercial, life-
style events and 26 filming events. The 
latter cemented the Castle’s brand as a 
lifestyle, music, entertainment, confer-
ence and educational centre in the minds 
of the Business Tourism sector. 

• Significant progress in the development 
of the first-ever Integrated Conservation 
Management Plan - the basis for our UN-
ESCO World Heritage listing ambitions 
- for the Castle of Good Hope, and we re-
cord our appreciation for SANDF support 
in this important owner-custodian asset 
management responsibility. 

Throughout this challenging year, the Board 
and Management have demonstrated that we 
are wholeheartedly committed to clean ad-

ministration and good corporate governance. 

Using the principle of heritage enterprise risk, 

the Castle Control Board has a highly function-

al Board, strong management team, effective 

Audit and Risk Committee and Internal Audit 

function, and excellent relationships with the 

Executive Authority, Defence Portfolio Com-

mittee, the Auditor General of South Africa 

and all key-stakeholders. Details of how these 

enterprise risks were mitigated and managed 

in 2018/19, and our achievements against pre-

determined objectives, will be presented in the 

CEO and his dedicated team in the sections 

that follow. 

Finally, the Castle of Good Hope occupies 

a very special if not peculiar spot within the 

global heritage landscape. It could be de-

scribed as the crucible of our difficult past, our 

turbulent present and uncertain but exciting 

new future. As the oldest surviving colonial 

structure – built on land that has existed for 

aeons before that -- it is perfectly positioned 

as a space of reflection, debate, learning and 

healing for every citizen of this country. 

I am confident that given the levels of Minis-

terial, departmental, public and business sup-

port, we shall truly transform the Castle of 

Good Hope into a globally significant, truly ac-

cessible centre that showcases South Africa’s 

shared heritage built on healing, nation-build-

ing and reconciliation.

LIEUTENANT GENERAL  
JABULANI SYDNEY MBULI

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD: CHAIRPERSON
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4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

Introduction

The 2018/19 financial year 
heralded the end of the 2014-
2019 Medium-Term Expenditure 
Framework and the beginning 
of a new one. Therefore, it 
presented an ideal moment 
to pause, reflect, review and 
plan for the next delivery 
cycle; a cycle appropriately 
summed up by the newly 
elected President of the  
Republic of South Africa as an 
“era of hope and renewal”.

But let me not shy away from 
the fact that it was also a year 
in which the resolve of team Castle was tested 
to the limit on a variety of fronts: financial, 
reputational, administrative, communication 
and human resources. 

The local tourism industry, plagued by a 
drought and economic stresses, declined by 
10%; this is reflected in our revenue figures. It 
certainly forced us to look at innovative ways 
of increasing our revenue from this struggling 
sector. Internally, we experienced attacks on 
the integrity of our well-run organization; 
creating a mood of distrust among some staff 
members. Five staff members unfortunately 
departed in the aftermath of this atmosphere. 
But there is a general feeling that we have 
successfully overcome this purple patch and 
can now forge ahead with new vigour and 
determination evidenced in what could be 
described as our “2018/19-resilience report”:

Financial Review

Despite the challenges spelled out elsewhere, 
this is probably one of the best financial review 
in seven years. Herewith the underlying drivers 
of this positive situation:

Slight Increase in Revenue

Revenue collected from inter alia tourism, 
events, filming but excluding non-exchange 

transactions were R5,682,903 
in 2018/19. This slight increase 
of R35,476 (0.6%) is still way 
ahead of the 10% decline in  
the local tourism industry. 
 Given that it was the very last 
year that the CCB had access 
to the Treasury approved sur-
plus funding, the organization  
is slowly but surely moving 
 towards parity in balancing  
its books. The Total Revenue 
 figure of R9,061,624 includes 
non-exchange transactions of 
R 3,102,245 for the donation  
of Conference Facility Assets 
and R 239,400 for services  

in kind donation for use of office space at  
the Castle.

Reduction in Expenditure

We are glad to announce that in line with 
the cost-saving commitments announced 
in the previous reporting cycle, total 
expenditure decreased from R8,453,216 in 
2018 to R6,719,177 in 2019 (20.51%). This is 
significant in real and absolute terms. 

Diminishing Wage Bill

In line with the above, salaries and wages 
dropped from R5,793,578 in the previous 
year to R4,901,388 in 2018/19 (-15.4%). 
Given that the CCB is a labor-intensive, 
service-sector heritage-business, this is 
no mean feat. Obviously, the loss of staff 
created another set of challenges, but we 
remain confident that this human resource 
realignment and adjustments will pay off in 
the medium and long run. The CCB decided 
to freeze the vacant positions in the interim 
thereby securing its going concern status. 

Maintenance Cost Down

One of the positive spin-offs of the DOD’s 
Logistics Division’s ring-fenced and tightly 
controlled amount of R4.5 million per annum, 

Calvyn Gilfellan
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was the radical reduction in CCB-spent 
on emergency, preventative and general 
maintenance and repair cost at the Castle. In 
2018 we spent R110,566 on this item whilst 
we only spent R26,758 in 2019. Besides 
this 75.79% year-on-year reduction, the 
positive transformation of this intervention 
on the Castle grounds, is now noted and 
praised by many of our previous critics. 
It also demonstrated that cost is not only 
measured in Rands and cents. Perennial 
Operational Deficit All but Resolved 

In February 2019, the Department of 
Military Veterans, the funder of the Castle’s 
Conference Centre for Memory, Healing 
and Learning, officially transferred this 
invaluable asset to the CCB. This secured 
CCB ownership and control of this asset and 
enhanced our net-financial position; albeit at 
the level of accounting entry. This transaction 
effectively moved the CCB from a deficit 
position of minus R2,630,141 in 2018 into a 
surplus position of R 2,000,757 in 2019.  

Capacity constraints and challenges

One of the major challenges during the year, 
was to strike a balance between the demands 
and expectations of community and cultural 
groups who wished to utilize the Castle on 
a complimentary basis, with those of the 
commercial events sector. This is an intricate 
balancing act that requires direct engagement, 
negotiations, contestations and understanding. 
It also requires some support in the form of state 
funding. Although dwindling funds and the loss 
of personnel have aggravated the situation, 
we are confident that through our partnership 
approach and cross-subsidization of programs, 
we will successfully deal with this dilemma. 

Review of performance against pre-
determined objectives

A complete report of the CCB’s performance 
against its predetermined objectives is present-
ed on pages 24 – 31 in this report. Suffice to say 

that the CCB’s only felt slightly short on three of 
its 18 key performance indicators’ targets: 

Administration and Good Corporate  
Governance 

• The CCB has met all its KPI-targets 
dealing with the operations of the Board, 
Board sub-committees and general 
administration.  

• The organization also sent its staff to 
attend national Performance Information 
Workshops whilst an updated MOU was 
signed with SITA to provide ICT support 
to the CCB. 

Preservation, Interpretation and Showcasing 
of the History of the Castle

• We met 3 out of the 4 of our APP targets 
in this area. The missed project, namely 
the relocation of the Khoi-kraal, had to 
be canned due to funding shortages. 
The combination of heritage, cultural and 
educational activities and programmes 
has driven this performance.  

• The community support and media and 
publicity generated by these events were 
unprecedented.  

Maximizing the Tourist Potential

• Visitor figures to the Castle were 201,756 
in 2018/19, which is 23.76% more than our 
KPI target of 165,000.  

• These numbers were mainly driven by 
the following supporting KPI’s, namely 
commercial events (52 in total, which is 
22 over target), film shoots (26 in total 
and 12 over target) and the number of 
joint marketing agreements with business 
partners (4 and 2 over target). 

Increased Public Profile and Positive 
Perception Across all Sectors of the 
Community

• Under the slogan “Bringing People to 
the Castle and Taking the Castle to the 
People”, the CCB met all four KPI targets 
under this Key Performance Area. 
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• One of the highlights, is the number 
of potential tourists reached through 
positive media coverage, which totaled 
365 million people in 2018/19. 

• This performance exceeded expectations 
because the CCB estimated a 
normalization of coverage as the 
euphoria of the 350th commemoration 
was subsiding. The advertising value 
equivalent (what it would have cost 
the CCB to “buy” this media coverage) 
amounts to an impressive R48 million 
(Source: Meltwater Quarterly Media 
Monitoring Reports, 2018-19) .

Supply chain management

The CCB SCM Policy is regularly reviewed and 
we have removed and overcome many of our 
historic procurement challenges. One of our 
most critical challenges is the size of the CCB 
and the numbers of staff to ensure segregation 
of duties. This was one of the matters raised 
by the Inspector-General prompting them 
to recommend an impractical solution: to 
outsource the CCB’s R500k per annum 
procurement of goods and services to the 
DOD’s Simons’ Town Procurement Centre! 

The Finance Unit is recording all technical 
non-compliance cases in an Irregular 
Expenditure Register and submits it to the 
Board quarterly. The extension of invitations 
to the AGSA and our Internal Auditors to 
our highly effective Audit & Risk Committee 
meetings, and the leadership provided 
by Advocate Dave Mitchell, has ensured 
significant improvements in this area. 

Economic Viability and Going Concern 
Status

In my report for the previous financial year, I 
spelled out the formula to not only retain the 
CCB’s going concern status, but to reposition 
it into a viable, vibrant public entity; one 
that all and sundry could be proud of. This 
was easier said than done – but through a 
mixture of sheer ingenuity and the run of 
circumstances, we have made it happen. 

Despite not receiving any direct financial 
allocation from either the national fiscus 
or the MOD&MV (we have put in a bid for a 
very modest operational subsidy of between 
R850k and R1.2m per annum over the next 
MTEF) and the CCB’s over-dependence on 
a fickle, seasonal tourism industry, we are 
confident that the organization will remain 
a going concern in the foreseeable future. 
Our basis for this assertion is the time-
tested formula of reducing expenditure and 
increasing revenue to balance a relatively small 
annual budget of approximately R7 million. 

To stabilize the CCB’s short-term budgetary 
challenges, we explored all other revenue 
generation opportunities raised in the Revenue 
Optimization Strategy. One such lucrative 
opportunity, is the longer-term leasing of 
office space in the outside building, called 
Waterblommetjie and the office space previously 
hired to the South African Heritage Resources 
Agency. This will provide us with a stable 
rental income over the next three years.  

The CCB’s income generation capacity 
and drive towards sustainability is more 
than often undermined by other on-site 
organizations trading in direct competition 
with the CCB. The transfer to or merging of 
Het Bakhuys Restaurant with the CCB and 
the overall role and pro-rata contributions of 
IZIKO and the Officers Messes at the CGH, 
must be resolved during the 2019/20 FY.  

With the above measures in place, and the 
R4.5 million maintenance and repairs support 
from the DOD’s Logistics Division, there is no 
doubt in our minds that the CCB will remain 
a going-concern over the next MTSF.  

Other Challenges

During the financial year, the CBB came 
under malicious attacks by individuals and 
organizations who clearly did not share our 
interest, values and philosophy. These bouts 
included the hitherto unproven allegations of 
corporate governance infringements; so-called 
heritage maintenance lapses occurring under 
our brief; the deliberate but false linking of 
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attempts to dissolve the Castle Military Museum 
Foundation to the closure of the Military 
Museum and ill-discipline on the part of a few 
CCB staffers. The latter have been subjected to 
the CCB’s disciplinary code and one member 
was dismissed whilst the other left in the 
wake of a pending ruling against him. 

Our response to the rest of these challenges were 
simple: we engage and listen to our detractors, 
but most of all, we put our heads down and work 
tirelessly towards our goals and objectives: to 
position the Castle as a symbol of inclusion, 
learning, healing and nation-building.  

In the case of the corporate government 
assertions, we have engaged the Inspectorate 
General in their probe. Other than a technicality 
in respect of the appointment of the Events 
Manager (this became a moot point because 
the Board dismissed her later after a disciplinary 
hearing) and the concerns around segregation 
of roles in SCM, the IG could find no incidences 
of the alleged endemic “fraud and corruption” 
mooted in the media by some of our detractors. 
The only unintended consequence turned out 
positive for us in that this unpleasant episode 
created heightened levels of awareness of 
good corporate governance in the CCB.  

This was evidenced in the decisiveness 
of the Board (through its Audit and Risk 
Committee) in dealing with two staff 
members who transgressed the CCB’s 
Code of conduct (see also HR-report). 

Focus during the new Financial Year: 
Challenges and Opportunities

• Formalizing the legal agreement be -
tween the EA and the Board; 

• Pursuing the review of and possible  
amendments to the Castle Management 
Act; 

• Completion of the Integrated Conser-
vation Management Plan; 

• Tackling the safety and security risks at 
the entrance and around the Castle; 

• Managing the negative perceptions 
created through some bad press; 

• Vigorously pursuing the Castle’s UNESCO 
World Heritage Site listing; 

• Roll-out of the CCB’s Responsible 
Commercialization strategy to drive 
sustainability; and 

• Strengthening institutional, corporate 
and administrative management process-
es at the CCB. 

Acknowledgement and Appreciation 

I wish to express a sincere word of gratitude 
towards the following persons and institutions 
who significantly contributed towards the 
growth and development of the entire 
organization: The CCB Board Chairperson and 
all Board members, the Minister of Defence 
and Military Veterans and her staff, the Deputy-
Minister of Defence and Military Veterans and 
his staff, the Portfolio Committee on Defence 
and Military Veterans, the South African 
National Defence Force, National Treasury, the 
Audit Committee Chairperson and his team, the 
Department of Public Works, the South African 
Heritage Resources Agency, IZIKO Museums 
of SA, the City of Cape Town, the South 
African Museum Association, Robben Island 
Museum, Ambassador and Consul-General for 
the Netherlands, media partners and last but 
not least, all Castle clients, members of the 
Castle inter-stakeholder committee, the staff 
of the CCB who ultimately deliver our noble 
mandate to the people of South Africa .

Calvyn Travers Gilfellan
Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer  
Castle Control Board 
31 May 2019
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION  
OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I 

confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the 

annual report is consistent with the annual 

financial statements audited by the Auditor 

General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is 

free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in 

accordance with the guidelines as issued by 

National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have 

been prepared in accordance with the SA 

Standards of GRAP, the Public Finance 

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), the 

Castle Management Act of South Africa, 1993 

(Act 207 of 1993) and all other standards 

applicable to the Castle Control Board as a 

public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the 

preparation of the annual financial statements 

and for the judgements made regarding this 

information. 

The accounting authority is responsible for the 

establishing and implementation of a system 

of internal control that has been designed to 

provide reasonable assurance relating to the 

integrity and reliability of the performance 

information, the human resources information 

and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are bound to express an 

independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects 

the operations, the performance information, 

the human resources information and the 

financial affairs of the public entity for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Yours faithfully 

Calvyn Travers Gilfellan

Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer  

Castle Control Board 

31 May 2019

LIEUTENANT GENERAL  
JABULANI SYDNEY MBULI

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD: CHAIRPERSON
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1. Vision 

The Castle of Good Hope shall be a centre of 

global significance that is the embodiment of 

social, cultural and military heritage and truly 

accessible to all citizens of South Africa  

and the world. 

6.2. Mission

The Castle Control Board is a service-oriented 

public entity, striving to create an environment 

where national pride serves to: 

• Build an internationally known and 

recognised cultural and heritage brand 

for Ubuntu, dialogue, nation-building and 

human rights recognition; 

• Guarantee the development of a smooth 

functioning, self-sustaining, “must-see” 

iconic visitor and learner destination; 

• Optimises its tourism potential and  

accessibility to the public; and 

• Preserve and protect its cultural and 

military heritage by elevating it to 

UNESCO World Heritage status. 

6.3. Values

The Castle Control Board, in its management 

of the Castle of Good Hope, has committed to 

infuse its programmatic and other corporate 

activities with the following core values:

• Service quality and excellence

• Operate with honesty and dignity

• Respect for the diversity in military, 

cultural and social history

• Genuine partnerships and collaborative 

relationships

• Community engagement and inclusivity

• Fiscal responsibility, accountability, 

transparency and sustainability

7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The Castle Control Board is established in 

terms of the Castle Management Act of South 

Africa 1993 (Act No. 207 of 1993) to govern 

and manage the Castle of Good Hope on 

behalf of the Minister of Defence and Military 

Veterans. It is furthermore a designated 

Schedule 3A Public Entity as defined in the 

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 

No.1 of 1999).  

The Defence Endowment Property and 

Account Act, 1922 (Act No. 33 of 1922) 

designates the Castle of Good Hope as defence 

endowment property that was transferred to 

the ‘defence organisations’ for the exclusive 

use by and benefit of the SANDF and MOD&MV. 

Given the global heritage significance of the 

Castle, the National Heritage Resources Act, 

Act 25 of 1999 is applicable because the Castle 

of Good Hope is a declared national heritage 

site and should be managed within this 

legislative framework. The CCB also utilizes 

Tourism policies and frameworks to guide its 

interventions and programmes. 

Based on the above, the Board has clearly 

identified overlap and gaps in the 1993 Castle 

Management Act, but fully acknowledges that 

the process to drive the legislative review shall 

be undertaken by the MOD&MV’s Legislative 

Drafting Directorate. The Board has engaged 

the said Directorate and has provided a broad 

outline of some of the issues to be addressed 

in the legislative review. However, it was agreed 

that this will form part of the  

hand-over report to be presented to the  

new executive authority. 
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8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

8.1 The Castle Control Board

Cabinet
Highest level of reporting and  

decision making

Portfolio Committee on  
Defence and Military Veterans

Parlimentary Control,  

evaluation,  

recommendations

SCOPA

Parlimentary Control,  

evaluation,  

recommendations

Minister of Defence and Military Veterans  
(as Member of Cabinet)

Legislation Accountability

Chief Executive Officer

Appointed by the Board, Command and  

Control over the Castle Management Section

Castle Section

Currently DOD support, future Board Structure. 

Responsible for Operational level management 

of the Castle

Chief of Logistics

Responsible for Castle as Defence  

endowment property. Appointed  

by the Minister as SANDF representative  

to the Board

Castle Control Board

Public Entity Responsible for  
management on Strategic level
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Figure 8.2 The CCB’s Operational Management Structure

Executive Director/CEO 
Calvyn Gilfellan

Board Secretary 
Mr. Derek Williams

Chief Financial Officer/Fin. Manager 
Mr Mandla Ngewu

Executive Assistant 
(Vacant since February 2018)

Precinct Manager 
(Currently fulfilled by  

SANDF member)

Heritage, Culture & Education  
Manager Ms. Azola Mkosana 
(Resigned February 2019)

Tourism Marketing Manager 
Ms. Doreen Hendricks 

(Resigned November 2018)

Events Manager 
Ms. Faith Mtabati 

(Dismissed March 2018)
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National Armed Forces Day celebrated at the Castle.



PART B 
 
Performance Information

The Castle’s lawns  
have regenerated after 

2017/18’s terrible  
drought.
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1. AUDITOR’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
 The AGSA as external auditor currently 

performs the necessary audit procedures 
on the performance information to 
provide reasonable assurance in the form 
of an audit conclusion. The audit 
conclusion on the performance against 
predetermined objectives is included in 
the report to management; with material 
findings being reported under the 

heading Predetermined Objectives in  

the section headed Report on other legal 

and regulatory requirements of the 

auditor’s report. 

 Refer to page 46 of the Report of  

the Auditor-General’s Report, published 

as Part E: Report from the Auditor-

General. 

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

2.1. Service Delivery Environment
 The Castle Control Board is responsible 

for the overall management, maintenance 
and promotion of the Castle of Good 
Hope as a heritage site and tourism 
attraction.  

 In terms of this legislative mandate, the 
organization is expected to provide a 
range of public services and goods for 
and on behalf of the DOD and the DMV  
to local community members, tourists, 
learners, students, conservation agen-
cies, exhibitors, performers, cultural 
organizations, traditional authorities, 
filming companies, event-organizers, 
 military institutions and the like.  

 The responsible commercialization of the 
Castle of Good Hope as a heritage site 
requires vigilance and proper 
environmental impact assessments. In 
January 2018, the DOD appointed a 
research team to develop a fully-fledged 
Integrated Conservation Management 
Plan, the first in the history of the Castle. 
This plan will not only guide the 
preservation and conservation of the 
physical structure of the Castle, but also 
deal will the impact of tourism, events, 
filming and other user-related activities. 

 Whilst this is unfolding, the CCB used 
cultural environmental specialists and 
heritage architects (or solicited guidance 
and support from SAHRA) to assess the 
implications of all the tourism and 

heritage initiatives it hosted or planned 
to host over the MTEF. 

 The ability of the Board to deliver its full 
range of services to the public is also 
dependent on close collaboration with 
the MOD&MV and other line and/or 
support departments and institutions, as 
well as external experts. Therefore, the 
Board has strengthened its established 
relationships with key DOD units such as 
the Directorate of Strategic Planning, 
CFO’s Office, Strategy & Planning, the 
Legal Office, the Logistics Division, the 
Office of the Minister’s Chief of Staff and 
the Office of the Deputy Minister. We also 
managed to establish and develop new 
strategic relationships to support the 
Minister’s initiatives.  

 Close relations exist with stakeholders 
also represented on the Castle Control 
Board, therefore sharing and assisting in 
management efforts as part of the 
strategic objectives of the Castle Control 
Board as stipulated in the Castle 
Management Act.  

 The CCB is also aware that stakeholders 
require a more open communication of 
its activities and achievements hence a 
massive increase in media coverage (over 
300 million people reached through the 
media) during the year under review. 
However, the Board has taken a deliberate 
decision that a partnership for the sake of 
partnerships is no longer sufficient; the 
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partnership needs to show a return on 
investment and that all stakeholders and 
partners are required to contribute 
positively and constructively towards the 
successes and achievements of the Castle 
as one citadel. 

 Given the world-wide significance of the 
Castle of Good Hope, the organization 
actively reached out and involved the 
Dutch, British, Spanish, Belgium and 
French Consulates in some of its major 
activities. The increased awareness of the 
Castle and the positioning of the Castle 
as a place of reflection, healing and nation 
building placed a greater responsibility 
on the CCB to ensure that we manage 
these demands in a responsible and 
sensitive way.  

2.2. Organisational environment 

 The organization has a well-structured, 
fully functional Board, Audit and Risk 
Committee and independent Internal 
Audit function, and now has a fully-
fledged civilian staff complement. After 
the DOD’s Directorate for Management 
Services (DIMS) designed the optimal 
structure for the CCB, the Board finalized 
the recruitment of its entire management 
team. With a full-time staff complement 
of 16 (casual workers and interns 
excluded), this represents a significant 
step towards stability, focus and service 
delivery all which paid immediate 
dividends. However, it also created 
budgetary strains since the CCB could no 
longer rely on SANDF members to 
execute its operations. This point is 
elaborated in other sections.After 
appointing its full management team in 
2016/17, the Board has significantly 
tightened up its policy and control 
environment by reviewing and adopting 
the following policies and procedures: 
the SCM Policy, Risk Procedure, Board 
Charter, Audit Committee Charter, 
Delegation of Authority, Fraud Prevention 
Policy, a Performance Management 

System and ICT Policies. The 
internalization of these policies and 
procedures is ongoing. The organization 
has shown significant progress and 
because of the drive to ensure good 
corporate governance, it is now better 
positioned than ever to discharge its full 
mandate. However, the Board, mindful of 
the quest for greater financial 
sustainability, is also wary of the risk 
related to unfunded mandates. The 
management of the organization is 
performed on an “enterprise risk 
management” basis i.e. the most 
important risks that would potentially 
compromise our ability to attain our 
strategic objectives are articulated in a 
Risk Register, ranked and regularly 
evaluated. Given that we also have a 
precinct-wide responsibility, other on-
site partners are engaged in a monthly 
meeting where issues of communal 
concern are discussed. We also circulate 
a weekly activity schedule to ensure that 
all Castle inhabitants know what is 
happening on the site. 

2.3. Key policy developments and 
legislative changes

 In July 2013, the Board initiated a process 
with the DOD to investigate the possible 
review of the Castle Management Act 
(Act 207 of 1993) as it was not completely 
in line with the Constitution and the 
PFMA as well as other key pieces of 
legislation. Towards the end of the 
financial year, the Department’s legal 
team prepared a draft document. 
However, we decided to let it stand over 
for the next Executive Authority to 
pursue. Through the Legal Advisor in the 
Minister’s Office, Dr Lirette Louw’s 
interventions, this process has been 
reopened and the DOD’s Legislative 
Team recommended a complete review 
and redrafting of the Castle Management 
Act. This team has recommended that 
the Castle Management Act be reviewed 
and redrafted. The CCB team provided an 
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update to the Portfolio Committee on 
Defence and Military Veterans when we 
met the latter on 9 May 2018 and 
articulated this requirement in the hand-
over document prepared and delivered 
for the new EA in December 2018. 

2.4. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals

 The strategic outcome goals of the CCB 
articulated in the APP for the 2018/19 
financial year were: 

• To ensure effective administrative 
management in terms of corporate 
governance and project a profession-
al, competent corporate image; 

• To develop the museum and interpre-

tive components of the Castle and its 

related themes through continuous 

research and development; 

• To ensure promotion of the Castle as 

a must-see and vibrant tourist 

destination accessible to all the 

citizens of South Africa and the 

world; and 

• To ensure the accessibility of the 

Castle as an attractive and user-

friendly centre of cultural significance 

by all sectors of the community.

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ 
OBJECTIVE

 The core programme outputs, perfor-
mance indicators and annual targets are 
indicated in the tables below. Core 
 Programme Performance Indicators are 

 defined as this performance information 
directly link to the legislative mandate  
of the CCB. During the 2018/19 FY, the 
CCB had the following programmes:  

3.1. Programme 1: Administration through Good Corporate Governance

 Strategic Objective 1: The objective of 
this programme was to ensure effective 
administrative management in terms of 
corporate governance and a professional 
competent corporate image towards 

 optimal resource support and public rela-
tions. It covers the areas of administra-
tion, corporate governance, financial 
management, human resource manage-
ment and stakeholder communication. 

Table 3.1 Administration and Corporate Governance

Outcomes/ 
Outputs

Performance  
indicator

Actual  
Performance 

2017/18

Planned  
Target 

2018/19

Actual  
Achievements  

2018/19 Deviations

Comment on  
deviations 

(>5%)

Delivery of excellent 
corporate gover-
nance through tight 
internal controls and 
world-class adminis-
tration.

Number of outstanding 
corporate governance 
measures effected.

0 0 0 None

Delivery of sound fi-
nancial management 
and control  
measures.

Percentage of signif-
icant prior-year audit 
findings resolved.

100% 100% 100% None None

Delivery of good 
governance and 
clean administration.

CCB Annual Perfor-
mance Plan timeously 
submitted to the Execu-
tive Authority.

100% 100% 100% None None

Delivery of good 
governance and 
clean administration.

CCB Annual Report tim-
eously submitted to the 
Executive Authority.

100% 100% 100% None None 
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3.2 Programme 2: Preservation, Interpretation and showcasing of the history of the 
Castle

 Strategic Objective 2: The objective of 
this programme was to develop the 
museum and interpretative components 
of the Castle and its related themes, 
through continuous research and 
development projects to establish 
effective exhibitions and strive towards 

maximum educational outreach and to 
ensure professional and effective 
immovable heritage asset management 
in line with SAHRA guidelines through 
the establishment of a proper networking 
platform with role players. 

Table 3.2: The Preservation, Interpretation and showcasing of the history of the Castle

Outputs
Performance  

indicator

Actual  
Performance 

2017/18

Planned  
Target 

2018/19

Actual 
Achievements 

2018/19 Deviations
Comment on  

deviations (>5%)

Delivery of a com-
prehensive offering 
of visitor services 
and experiences.

Percentage comple-
tion of scheduled 
repair and mainte-
nance work.

100% 100% 75% 25% Fixing of the 
curbs at the 
entrance was 
postponed due 
to financial con-
straints.

Delivery of a range 
of projects and 
services aimed at 
the enhancement, 
upkeep and mainte-
nance of the CGH as 
heritage site.

Annual increase in 
the number of tangi-
ble heritage projects 
implemented at the 
CGH.

5 5 5 5 None

Delivery of a com-
prehensive offering 
of visitor services 
and experiences.

Number of non-com-
mercial, cultural 
events hosted annu-
ally at the CGH.

10 10 24 +14 There is a spike 
in the number 
of community 
groups now 
using the Castle 
for their cultural 
events.

Delivery of a com-
prehensive offering 
of visitor services 
and experiences.

Number of exhibi-
tions hosted annually 
at the CGH.

6 8 8 None None
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3.3 Programme 3: Maximising the tourism potential of the Castle of Good Hope

 Strategic Objective 3: The objective of 

this programme is to ensure the 

promotion of the Castle as a must-see 

and vibrant tourist destination, accessible 

to all citizens of South Africa and the 

world; networking with local and national 

tourist organisations and utilising suitable 

opportunities to establish educational 

and social programmes. 

Table 3.3: Maximizing the tourism potential of the Castle

Outputs
Performance 

indicator

Actual 
Achieve-

ment 
2017/18

Annual 
Target 

2018/19

Actual 
Achievements 

2018/19 Deviations

Comment on  
deviations  

(>5%)

Delivery of a 
comprehensive 
offering of visitor 
services and 
experiences to 
attract tourists 
and locals to the 
CGH.

Total number 
of visitors per 
annum.

232 129 165 000 201 756 + 36 759 This exceptional 
growth is due to an 
increase in natu-
ral footfall due to 
marketing efforts, as 
well as an increase in 
events. 

Delivery of a 
comprehen-
sive offering of 
visitor services 
and experiences 
to attract more 
tourists and lo-
cals to the CGH.

Total gross rev-
enue generated 
per annum.

R5 586 540 R7.85m R5 682 903 - R2 167 097 This excludes the 
amount of R3, 
102,245 related to 
non-exchange trans-
actions (Conference 
Assets and Office 
rental) that would 
otherwise inflate our 
Total Revenue to 
R9,061,624.

Delivery of a 
comprehen-
sive offering of 
visitor services 
and experiences 
to attract more 
tourists and lo-
cals to the CGH.

Number of com-
mercial events 
hosted annually 
at the CGH.

56 30 52 +22 The outstanding 
media and marketing 
exposure enhanced 
the Castle’s appeal 
as an events desti-
nation.

Delivery of a 
comprehen-
sive offering of 
visitor services 
and experiences 
to attract more 
tourists and lo-
cals to the CGH.

Number of film 
and fashion 
shoots accom-
modated at the 
CGH per annum.

33 14 26 +12 The outstanding 
media and marketing 
exposure enhanced 
the Castle’s appeal 
as a film destination.

Delivery of a 
comprehen-
sive offering of 
visitor services 
and experiences 
to attract more 
tourists and lo-
cals to the CGH.

Number of tour-
ism infrastruc-
ture upgrades 
undertaken.

6 2 3 +1 The ever-evolving 
needs of our clients, 
requires constant 
flexibility in design-
ing and presenting 
our tourism offering.

Delivery of a 
comprehen-
sive offering of 
visitor services 
and experiences 
to attract more 
tourists and lo-
cals to the CGH.

Number of Joint 
Marketing Initia-
tives undertaken 
per year.

4 2 4 +2 The CCB is constant-
ly seeking oppor-
tunities for win-win 
partnerships, hence 
the increase. 
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3.4 Programme 4: Increased public profile and positive perception across all sectors 
of the community

 Strategic Objective 4: The objective of 

this programme is to ensure the accessi-

bility of the Castle as an attractive and 

user-friendly centre of cultural signifi-

cance by all sectors of the community 

and that it is also promoted to the 

business and corporate community as a 

high-profile conference and functions 

venue. 

Table 3.4 Public Access and Communication

Outputs
Performance 

indicator

Actual 
Achievement 

2017/18

Annual 
Target 

2018/19

Actual 
Achievements 

2018/19 Deviations

Comment on  
deviations  

(>5%)

Deliver a series 
of public inno-
vative events 
aimed to pro-
mote under-
standing of the 
CGH as heritage 
icon.

Annual number 
of potential 
visitors reached 
through the 
media.

518m 60m 365m 305m The number of 
high-level events, the 
excellent relations 
with the media (TV 
in particular) and the 
team’s PR& commu-
nications endeavours, 
led to this outstand-
ing achievement. 99% 
of this media cover-
age was positive.

Delivery of a 
range of public 
programmes 
with SA schools, 
cultural groups 
and special com-
munity groups.

Number of 
student-learner-
ships and intern-
ships offered per 
annum.

26 15 15 None None

Delivery of a 
range of public 
programmes 
with SA schools, 
cultural groups 
and special com-
munity groups.

Number of heri-
tage-educational 
programmes 
organized for 
women, unem-
ployed youth, 
disabled and 
traditional com-
munities.

46 15 25 +10 The excellent rela-
tionships built over 
the years, have led to 
an increased demand 
for community events 
at the Castle.

Delivery of a 
range of public 
programmes 
with SA schools, 
cultural groups 
and special com-
munity groups.

Number of 
heritage pro-
grammes orga-
nized for Military 
Veterans.

8 6 15 +2 The excellent rela-
tionships built over 
the years, have led to 
an increased demand 
for military veter-
an memorialization 
events at the Castle.

4. Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance

 The CCB is continuously looking at ways 

to enhance performance. In respect of 

income-improvement, we are rolling out 

Phase 2 of our Revenue Generation 

Strategy. We have now opened a Gift 

Shop, started to promote the state-of-art 

Conference Centre to generate income, 

recruit a new restauranteur to improve 

turnover and will focus on high-yield 

events for the site. In the areas of 

administration, we will settle our human 

resource component and in respect of 

corporate governance we want to 

eliminate all the outstanding control 

issues. We have already engaged the 

DOD and Treasury and adjusted the 

unrealistic number of interns to 15 per 

annum and it seems as if the former will 

provide the CCB with interns paid by  

the Department. 
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5. Changes to planned targets

 No targets were changed although we 

firmly believe that the targets for media 

coverage will be adjusted upwards in  

the next APP. 

6. Linking performance with budgets

 The following tables deal with the 

financial resources deployed to meet our 

strategic objectives and specific KPIs: 

The financial information agrees to the 

information in the annual financial 

statements.  

Programme/activity/ 
Objective

2017/2018 2018/2019

Budget
Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/ 
Under  

Expenditure Budget
Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/ 
Under  

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration through cor-
porate governance.

7 683 7 565 118 7 061 6 534 527

Preservation and protec-
tion of military and cultural 
heritage. 

528 570 (42) 525 230 295

Maximising the Castle’s tour-
ism potential.

63 39 24 60 3 57

Increased public profile and 
positive perception of the 
Castle.

264 279 (15) 204 294 (90)

TOTAL 8 538 8 453 85 7 850 7 061 789

7. Revenue collection

Sources of revenue

2017/2018 2018/2019

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Actual 
Amount 

Collected

(Over)/ 
Under  

Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sales 4 500 4 124 376 5 000 4 383 617

Rental Income 3 465 1 132 2 333 2 220 1 322 898

Other Income 324 450 (126) 575 3 343 (2 768)

Interest Income 249 117 132 55 14 41

TOTAL 8 538 5 823 2 715 7 850 9 062 (1 212)
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 From the above table, the Castle Control 

Board runs a relatively uncomplicated 

heritage enterprise with a limited  

number of revenue sources.  

 Sales income is in line with our estimates 

for the year. However, the provision  

made to compensate for the access to 

our historic surplus funds, skews this 

estimate thus painting a picture of 

underperformance 

8. Capital investment 

 The historically accumulated liquid assets 

were originally invested with two 

institutions, namely Rand Merchant Bank 

and ABSA Bank. During the past financial 

year, it was decided to consolidate these 

investments and invest it with ABSA Bank 

as this investment carried an interest rate 

of 0.5% more. The Board has no 

investment in fixed property; thus, no 

infrastructure projects were embarked on 

by the Board for the period under review.

The Castle is home to many species of fauna and flora; right in the heart of Cape Town.
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The Castle’s Centre for Memory, Healing and Learning  
used by the South African Religious Forum



PART C 
 
Governance

This tunnel, running  
underneath the Castle, 

is channeling the sweet, 
Camissa-water from  

Table Mountain  
into the sea.
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1. INTRODUCTION

 The CCB is serious about its corporate 

governance responsibility. After every 

external audit, the management team 

look at all the corporate governance 

deficiencies – small and large - in the 

previous financial year and develop and 

implement an action plan to resolve them. 

The Executive Authority is usually 

informed about the Board’s intentions 

regarding this. This specific aspect was 

addressed at the quarterly so-called 

“dashboard” engagements with the 

AGSA, and significant improvement was 

made in this regard. The dashboard 

engagements were replaced with similar 

quarterly engagements at Audit and Risk 

Committee meetings. 

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 

 The Board engaged the Portfolio 

Committee twice during the past financial 

year where we met with them on the 

following dates: 

• 9 May 2018 when the Chairperson 

and CEO presented the final draft 

2018/19 APP to the Portfolio 

Committee. 

• 10 October 2018 when the 

Chairperson and CEO presented the 

2017/18 Annual Report highlights. 

The Committee commended the 

significant progress made and raised 

no major issues. 

 Some of the honourable members also 

visited the Castle of Good Hope to 

acquaint themselves with the activities at 

the Castle. 

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

 Besides the regular quarterly reports 

presented through the Defence 

Secretariat, it had communications with 

the EA on the following occasions: 

• Meeting several times with the 

Deputy-Minister of Defence in April 

2018 to discuss the alleged corporate 

infringements raised against the CCB.

4. THE ACCOUNTING  
AUTHORITY: THE CASTLE 
CONTROL BOARD 

 As a Schedule 3A Public Entity of the 

Department of Defence and Military 

Veterans, the Board is constituted to 

reflect its diverse stakeholder interest. In 

terms of the Castle Management Act, the 

Castle of Good Hope has been placed 

under the juristic control of the Castle 

Control Board, where the Act furthermore 

stipulates certain conditions in terms of 

the composition of the Castle Control 

Board, including, but not limited to, the 

following: 

• The Board comprises of represen-

tatives of the various national and 

provincial stakeholders, as specifically 

referred to in the Act. 

• The chairperson of the Board shall be 

appointed by SAHRA as a member of 

the Board, with the exclusion of the 

Officer Commanding Army Support 

Base Western Cape and the Executive 

Director, who is not electable as 

chairperson.  

• Appointment of members, and alter-

nates appointed as representatives 

of stakeholders, is for a period of two 

(2) years except for the Officer 

Commanding Army Support Base 

Western Cape and the Executive 

Director/CEO who will remain 

appointed members to the Board if 

they serve in their respective 

capacities in the service of such 

stakeholder. 
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• The Vice Chairperson is to be elected 

by Board members and the Executive 

Director will act as Secretary to the 

Board. A quorum for a meeting 

comprises the Chairperson or Vice 

Chairperson and at least six (6) 

members. 

 After the appointment of their Executive 

Director (CEO), the Board adopted a firm 

stance in respect of the day-to-day 

management of the organization. The 

Board Charter, Code of Ethics and 

Business Conduct, Fraud Prevention Plan 

has been updated and adopted. To 

separate the role of the Board and 

executive management, a Delegation of 

Authority has also been developed  

and adopted.  

5. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

Stakeholders Name

South African National Defence Force – Chief of Logistics Lieutenant General J.S. Mbuli)

Cape Town Regional Chamber of Commerce and Industry Ms C. de Vries

Iziko Museums of South Africa Ms R. Omar (replaced with Dr B. Ndlovu)

Department of Public Works Mr F. Johnson (Retired October 2018)

South African Heritage Resources Agency Ms V. Baduza (replaced with Mr B. Mwasinga)

Officer Commanding Army Support Base Western Cape Col B.M. Feni

City of Cape Town Mr D. Hart

South African Tourism Board (WESGRO) Ms J. Lain

Appointed by the Minister of Defence and Military Veter-
ans

Adv D. Mitchell

Ms A. Aggenbach

Western Cape Provincial Legislature Vacant

Chief Executive Officer Mr C. Gilfellan

Chief Financial Officer Mr M. Ngewu

Secretary Mr D. Williams

6. COMMITTEES 

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

Audit & Risk Committee 4 6

Adv. D Mitchell (Chairman),  
Ms C de Vries (Member),  
Ms J Niekerk (Member),  
Mr EM Bruttoh (Member),  
Mr Calvyn Gilfellan (ED),  
Mr Mandla Ngewu (CFO)
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7. REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS

 Board members represent a stakeholder 
organization and an agreement was 
made that each statutory organization 
takes care of the travel and other 
expenses related to the member’s 

attendance at Board meetings. The 
exceptions are the Chairperson and 
another member who served on the Audit 
Committee and ex-officio members of 
the Board. 

Table 9: Remuneration of Board members

Name Remuneration Other allowance Other 
re-imbursements Total

Lt Gen MM Moadira/  
Lt Gen JS Mbuli

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Brig. Gen. R. Mongo/ 
Col B.M. Feni

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms R. Omar Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr F. Johnson Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms V Baduza Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms C de Vries** R10 476 Nil Nil R10 476

Mr D. Hart Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms J Lain Nil Nil Nil Nil

Adv. D. Mitchell* R12 951 Nil Nil R12 951

Ms A. Aggenbach Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr C.T. Gilfellan*** R1 040 Nil Nil R1 040k

Mr D Williams*** R252k Nil Nil R252k

Mr M Ngewu*** R842k Nil R842k

Notes: *In his capacity as Audit Committee Chairperson
 **In her capacity as Audit Committee Member
 ***In their capacity as, full-time employees of the Board
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Board, guided by the Audit & Risk 

Committee and Management, has 

endeavoured to put together a framework 

for a risk management policy and 

strategy. Given the delegations of 

authority and segregation of duties, the 

Board has appointed management to 

spearhead this important part of the 

entity’s work and has adopted a  

Risk-based Enterprise Development 

approach to its work. 

 Management has developed a Risk 

Register (adopted by the Board), which 

forms the basis for regular risk 

assessments to determine the 

effectiveness of its risk management 

strategy and to identify new and  

emerging risks. 

 This is a standard item on the CCB’s Audit 

and Risk Committee that advises 

management on the overall system of risk 

management, especially the justification 

of unacceptable levels of risk. 

9. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

 After the completion of the appointment 

of the CCB’s management structure, the 

organization’s segregation of duties and 

responsibilities were implemented. This 

has significantly enhanced the system of 

internal control. The latter is further 

supported by a strong functioning Audit 

& Risk Committee and the efforts of 

individual Board members. Regular 

management meetings, unit meetings 

and monthly staff meetings, clear 

delegation of authority and the 

appointment of internal SCM committees 

have radically strengthened the internal 

control environment.  

10. INTERNAL AUDIT AND  
AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The CCB had a fully functional Internal 

Audit function for the year under review. 

Nexia-SAB&T was appointed in April 2017 

to fulfil the following functions: 

• Evaluate the effectiveness of controls 

over the reliability and integrity of 

information for management pro-

cesses, including performance meas-

urement. 

• Ascertain the level of compliance 

with plans, policies, procedures, 

directives, laws and regulations. 

• Assess the adequacy and effective-

ness of controls to safeguard assets, 

including intangible and non- financial 

assets. 

• Appraise the economies and 

efficiencies with which resources are 

employed. 

• Review operations to ascertain 

whether established objectives and 

goals are being achieved as planned.

• Assist management in identifying 

business risks and in assessing the 

adequacy of their risk management 

and governance processes. 

 The working relationship between the 

Internal Audit team, management, the 

Audit & Risk Committee and the AGSA,  

is excellent and some of the preliminary 

work around the review of key policies, 

approval of ICT policies and the Internal 

Audit Charter was completed by  

year-end. 

 The Audit & Risk Committee, under the 

exemplary leadership of Advocate Dave 

Mitchell, has been invaluable to the 

strides that have been made in the CCB 

policy, oversight as well as control 
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environments. The Audit Committee 

members’ active participation in matters 

related to financial management, 

organizational performance, corporate 

governance, risk and oversight is 

undeniably the major reason for the 

smooth, strategic operation of the Board. 

A case in point was their swift response 

after the surfacing of the hitherto 

unsubstantiated allegations against the 

CCB in March 2018. 

Table 11: Audit committee details

Name Qualifications
Internal or 

external

If internal, 
position in  
the public

entity
Date  

appointed
Date  

resigned

Adv D. Mitchell

B Com. LLB., B Compt. (Hons), 
CFA, Advocate of the High Court 
of SA., Chartered Accountant 
(SA)

Internal
Board  
Member

May 2012 N/A

Mr EM Bruttoh  
(resigned 31 March 2019)

CA (SA) External – May 2018 May 2019

Ms C de Vries
Post Grad Dip in Marketing/

Management, B. Soc. Sci.
External – Feb. 2015 N/A

Mr C Gilfellan
BA, BA-Honors, MA (Geography 
and Environmental
Studies)

Ex-Officio
Board  
Member

April 2013 N/A

Mr M Ngewu BSc, B Com, B Compt (Hons) Ex-Officio
Board  
Member

April 2014 N/A

Ms J Niekerk BA, LL. B External –
February 

2018
N/A

Table 12: Attendance at meetings

Name of Member Number of Meetings Attended

Year to 31.3.2019 Since 31.3.2019

Adv. D Mitchell (Chairperson) 5 2

Mr EM Bruttoh 3 -

Ms C de Vries 5 2

Ms J Niekerk 4 0
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11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS

 In previous audits, the findings in this 
area related to the fact that AFS were not 
prepared in terms of section 55 (1) of the 
PFMA, expenditure not managed in terms 
of section 51 (1) (b) (ii) of the PFMA, SCM 
not done in terms of the relevant sections 
of Treasury Regulations 16A6.3 and the 
PPPFA, and strategic planning not done 
in terms of Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(d).

 This year’s audit proved that most of, 
many of these matters have been 
addressed to the satisfaction of the 
Board, the Executive Authority and the 
AGSA.  

12. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
 The CCB has a fully-fledged Fraud 

Prevention Policy that also addresses 
criminality.  

 The aims and purpose of the plan is to 
introduce a common mechanism to guide 
all staff to reducing fraud to an absolute 
minimum; introduce ways to ensure that 
resources are used for providing better 
care and quality of services; and ensure 
that any form of waste is regarded 
unacceptable by all employees.  

 It further aims to make losses due to 
fraud and corruption intolerable so that 
citizens are not deprived of resources 
intended for their benefit. It is determined 
and committed to see fraud and 
corruption matched by insistence that 
the work of those responsible for 
countering fraud, is carried to the highest 
standards and is supported by well-
designed comprehensive training, 
covering all aspects of work. This training 
covers the whole spectrum from 
preventative through to the effective 
imposition of appropriate sanctions for 
those committing fraud to ensure that 
awareness of and involvement to counter 
fraud is made a general responsibility of 
all professionals. 

 Because the Castle of Good Hope is a 
hemmed-in, well-monitored and 
protected citadel, access monitoring by 
SANDF is a major crime deterrent. It is 
more likely that criminal activities would 
be internally induced, and for that matter 
the MOD&MV’s functional guidelines as 
applied by the on-site military staff is 
more than enough to deal with the issue. 
In the case of big corporate functions at 
the Castle, additional private security is 
sourced and paid for by the client. The 
upgrading of the CCTV camera system 
will further enhance our capability to 
manage safety and security. 

13. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST

 Board Members were requested to 
declare their conflict of interest at every 
Board meeting. As a standard practice, a 
declaration register, which allows for 
directorships of companies, were also 
filled out. In similar vein, staff members 
must declare their interest at procurement 
and other transactional activities of  
the CCB. 

14. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 The Board has reviewed and re-adopted 

a Code of Conduct to provide direction 
to all civilian officials and employees 
about their relationship with the 
legislature, political and executive office-
bearers, other employees and the public, 
and to indicate the spirit in which 
employees should perform their duties, 
what should be done to avoid conflict of 
interests and what is expected of them in 
terms of their personal conduct in  
public and private life. 

 Although the Code of Conduct is drafted 
to be as comprehensive as possible, it is 
not an exhaustive set of rules regulating 
standards of conduct. However, the 
leadership of the Castle Control Board, 
through their responsibility for the 
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efficient management and administration 
of the Castle Control Board and the 
maintenance of discipline, are, inter alia, 
duty-bound to ensure that the conduct 
of their employees conform to the basic 
values and principles governing the 
Board’s administration, and the norms 
and standards as prescribed by the 
Board. The Board’s leadership should 
also ensure that the staff members are 
acquainted with these measures and that 
they accept and abide by them. 

 The primary purpose of the Code is a 
positive one, namely, to promote 
exemplary conduct. Notwithstanding 
this, an employee shall be guilty of 
misconduct, and may be dealt with in 
accordance with the relevant collective 
agreement if he/she contravenes any 
provision of this Code or fails to comply 
with any provision thereof. 

15. HEALTH SAFETY AND  
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

 Given that the Castle of Good Hope is a 
quasi-military site, health and safety is 
the constant concern of the CCB. Every 
precaution has been taken to provide a 
safe workplace. Regular inspections and 
safety meetings are done by the Support 
Services Manager. He also meets with 
management to plan and implement 
further improvements in our safety 
program. Common sense and personal 
interest in safety are still the greatest 
guarantees of safety at work, on the road, 
and at home. 

 The CCB is serious about the safety of 
employees and tourists, and any wilful or 
habitual violation of safety rules is a 
cause for dismissal. The Castle Control 
Board is sincerely concerned about the 
health and well-being of each member of 
the team. In December 2018, with the 
financial assistance from Logistics 
Divisions, the entire fire and safety system 
of the Castle was overhauled.  

16. BOARD SECRETARY 
 In terms of the Act, the accounting officer 

is responsible for the role and 

responsibilities of the company secretary, 

as well as the reports and returns. 

However, the Board has appointed Mr 

Derek Williams as secretary and the 

position will be reviewed as the 

organization grows. This issue was also 

raised in the CCB’s engagement with the 

Portfolio Committee in May 2018 and will 

be resolved during the year. 

17. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
 In both the Chairperson and Accounting 

Officer’s reports, it is evident that the 

entity takes it social responsibility very 

seriously. In fact, it dedicates an entire 

strategic objective to the increase in 

public access to the Castle of Good Hope. 

 We are acutely aware that, measured 

against international standards, the 

entrance fees of R50 and R30 for adults 

and children respectively to access our 

heritage offering is very reasonable, 

however still unaffordable to large 

sections of our communities. Mindful of 

this, we have provided free access to all 

citizens on Freedom Day 27 April 2018, 

Museum Day on 18 May 2018 and Heritage 

Day on 24 September 2018.  

 In addition to this, we regularly receive 

requests from local scholars who cannot 

afford the R8 entry for the Castle. In such 

cases, we assess the situation and let the 

group in, either at a reduced cost or no 

cost at all. During the year we also hosted 

smaller groups of disabled and destitute 

youths at our various cultural functions 

and events. We also opened our  

venues, including the brand-new Centre 

for Memory, Healing and Learning to 

struggling NGOs and organized Khoisan, 

Nguni cultural groups and military 

veterans. 
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18. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 We are pleased to present the Audit 

Committee Report for the Castle Control 

Board (CCB) for the financial year ended 

31 March 2019.  

 Audit Committee Members and 
Attendance 

 The Audit Committee consists of four 

independent persons, all with the required 

expertise and experience in business, 

compliance and financial matters. Two 

committee members are also members 

of the Board. The Committee meets 

quarterly and has met five times during 

the year to 31 March 2019 and twice 

subsequently, in accordance with its 

approved terms of reference. 

Name Number of meetings 
attended 

Year to 
31.3.2019

Since  
31.3.2019 

Adv. D Mitchell (Chairperson) * 5 2 

MR E Bruttoh (resigned  
31 March 2019)

3 -

Ms C de Vries* 5 2

Ms J Niekerk 4 0

* Board member

 Representatives of the Auditor-General 

have attended or were invited to all Audit 

Committee meetings. 

 Audit Committee Responsibility 

 The Audit Committee reports that it has 

complied with its responsibilities arising 

from sections 51(1)(a)(ii) and 76(4)(d) of 

the Public Finance Management Act and 

Treasury Regulation 27.  

 The Committee further reports that it has 

adopted appropriate formal terms of 

reference as its Audit Committee Charter 

and has regulated its affairs and 

discharged its responsibilities in 

compliance with this charter.  

 Internal audit 

 Internal audit has focused on access 
 control and revenue collection (at the 
entrance to the Castle), as well as on 
 supply chain management procedures, 
the recording of detailed reasons for any 
deviations, record management and the 
retention of records generally. Recom-
mendations have been implemented. A 
sound and comprehensive internal audit 
plan is in place for continuing internal 
audit activity, however this is subject to 
the availability of financial resources.  

 The application of good accounting 
practices and strong and effective 
internal control 

 The Auditor-General has pinpointed 
various instances where accounting 
practices, internal controls, document 
retention and the supply of financial 
information could be improved, or where 
attention to procedural specifics was 
viewed as inadequate. Several of these 
shortcomings arose in the course of the 
Castle Control Board’s acquisition of 
conference equipment, furniture and 
software in the Conference Centre for 
Memory, Healing and Learning by way of 
a transfer from the Department of Military 
Veterans, which was a once-off and 
unusual occurrence.  

 Irregular expenditure 
 Management and the Board can be 

commended for ensuring that that there 
was no irregular or unauthorised 
expenditure, and also no fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure. Supply chain 
management policies and prescripts have 
been strictly observed and actual 
expenditure has been closely monitored. 

 Audit review of predetermined 
objectives 

 In a limited assurance review, the Auditor-
General has confirmed the quality, 
usefulness and reliability of performance 
management reporting which continues 
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to be of a good standard. A percentage 
indicator for the number of predetermined 
objective targets achieved for Programme 
2 initially stated at 95% was corrected, 
during the audit, to 75%. This performance 
deviation relates to the deferral of repairs 
to curbstones at the Castle’s entrance 
and is not material.  

 Fraud management 

 Internal control checks arising from the 
segregation of duties enabled manage-
ment to pinpoint a fraudulent practice by 
a senior employee who sought to defraud 
the Castle Control Board and certain 
 special events clients through a scheme 
of third party intermediation. Following a 
thorough investigation and a disciplinary 
hearing, the employee concerned was 
dismissed for serious misconduct. A fur-
ther investigation by the relevant law 
 enforcement authorities is underway and 
criminal and/or civil proceedings are 
 anticipated.  

 Paragraph 32 of the Auditor-General’s 
Report warrants clarification. An initial 
investigation by the Castle Control Board 
was promptly conducted and was 
completed. It is a further investigation by 
the S. A. Police Service into potential 
criminal charges that is still ongoing. 

 Risk management and heritage 
management compliance 

 Management has addressed important 
risk matters such as the impact of water 
restrictions on the Castle’s lawns and 
gardens and their attendant maintenance, 
the presence of vagrants and social 
disorder within or abutting the Castle 
precinct, and safety and security 
(including cybersecurity) challenges. 
Proactive solutions are being pursued 
where these are practically achievable.

 Work continues on the development of 
an integrated conservation management 
plan (ICMP) for the Castle, as required by 
the National Heritage Resources Act. This 

project is being funded directly by the  
S. A. National Defence Force whose 
assistance and support is appreciated. 

 Related party transactions, 
donations and benefits-in-kind 

 The Castle Control Board continues to 
receive further support from the S. A. 
National Defence Force, the Department 
of Defence and the Department of 
Military Veterans, principally: 

• Seconded military personnel 
(civilians) assist with the Castle 
Military Museum, for whom the 
SANDF carries a salary cost of R 861 
032 (2018: R 773 254). Consistent 
with prior years, these costs are not 
brought to account in the Statement  
of Financial Performance but are  
shown in Note 30.2, as a Related 
Party transaction.  

• The SANDF provides further 
personnel support with the Castle 
Guard (which is staffed by soldiers of 
a platoon strength drawn from local 
military units and Reserve Force 
regiments on a rotational basis) and 
with other essential governance, 
maintenance and support services. 
Although substantial, these services 
in-kind have not been quantified or 
measured and, as a consistent  
practice, are not disclosed in the 
annual financial statements.  

• The Department of Military Veterans 
has donated fixed assets in the form 
of furniture, equipment and software 
in the Castle’s newly-established 
Conference Centre with a reckoned 
value of R 3 102 245. This is essentially 
a once-off capital contribution which 
should not be construed as a 
recurring revenue item.  

• The Castle Control Board uses certain 
Castle office spaces that are under its 
own direction and control for its own 
purposes, foregoing any potential 
rental income therefrom, as it needs 
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to house its own personnel on-site. In 
a change of accounting practice, this 
usage has now been brought to 
account in the Statement of Financial 
Performance both as a benefit-in-
kind, received as a public contribution 
or donation, and as a venue rental 
expense, and prior year figures for 
2018 have been adjusted accordingly. 
There was no error per se in the 
entity’s audited annual financial 
statements for the prior year.  

• During the year, the Castle Control 
Board contributed R 150 107 (2018: R 
NIL) towards travelling costs for local 
military personnel and bandsmen to 
participate in the South African 
Military Tattoo held in Pretoria in 
October 2018. 

 Sustainability as a going concern 
 The Castle Control Board continues to 

carry responsibility for managing and 
controlling a significant, unique and 
multi-faceted national heritage site, and 
is required to do so without any form of 
national heritage grant from the State, 
whether received directly or indirectly, 
despite an appropriation to assist the 
Board having been envisaged in section 
18(1)(a) of the Castle Management Act, 
1993.  

 As indicated above, there is limited 
support from the S. A. National Defence 
Force and, in the 2019 year now being 
reported on, from the Department of 
Military Veterans. However this is not 
sufficient for the Castle either to be 
maintained as befits a heritage site of its 
stature or to be enabled to operate at its 
full potential as a centre for nation-
building, reconciliation and the 
development of good citizenship. The 
Board has briefed the Portfolio Committee 
and the Minister of Defence and Military 
Veterans and has requested that this 
serious strategic challenge should be 
urgently addressed. 

 Appropriateness of accounting 
presentation 

 As noted in paragraph 7 of the Auditor-
General’s Report, the acquisition of 
equipment and furniture from the 
Department of Military Veterans should 
not be permitted to obscure a fair 
representation of the Castle Control 
Board’s operating performance and 
financial health.  

 The Statement of Financial Performance 
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (as 
presented on page 6), when compared to 
the prior year, states that the CCB’s:  
• Total revenue increased by 48,7%, 

from R6,1 million to R9,1 million  
• Total expenditure decreased by 19,1% 

from R8,7 million to R7,1 million  
• Also that an operating deficit of R2,6 

million in the prior year changed to 
an operating surplus of R2,0 million 
in the current year.  

 These results are misleading and warrant 
explanation.  

 If the conference centre equipment and 
furniture acquired from the Department 
of Military Veterans was treated rather as 
a capital contribution of assets pursuant 
to a functional transfer, between entities 
or departments under a common control 
(which would better reflect the substance 
of the transaction), and removing the 
distortion caused by the CCB’s personnel 
occupying its own unutilised spaces as 
office accommodation while including 
SANDF salaries for seconded military 
museum personnel, a more truthful 
position would be the following:  
• Total revenue showed a slight 

decrease of 1,8%, from R5,8 million to 
R5,7 million  

• Total expenditure decreased by 16,7% 
from R9,2 million to R7,7 million  

• Accordingly the current year would 
show a continuing operating deficit 
of R2,0 million, this albeit a 42,3% 
reduction on the comparable deficit 
of R 3,4 million for the prior year.  
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 This reinterpretation of the CCB’s financial 

performance illustrates more clearly the 

seriousness of the entity’s ability (or 

inability) to continue as a going concern, 

while showing management’s tight 

control over expenditure, including the 

impact of savings arising from the non-

recruitment or non-replacement of CCB 

staff whose contracts of employment 

had terminated for whatever reason. 

 Evaluation of Financial Statements 

 The Audit Committee has:  

• reviewed and discussed the audited 

annual financial statements and 

perfor-mance report to be included 

in the annual report with the Auditor-

General, with management and the 

Chief Executive Officer, and with the 

Board as the CCB’s accounting 

authority  

• reviewed the Auditor-General’s 

manage-ment report on the findings 

of the audit and management’s 

response, and has reviewed all 

changes in accounting policies and 

practices  

• noted and reviewed the Auditor- 

General’s assessment of the useful-

ness and reliability of performance 

information examined.  

The Auditor-General’s Report on the annual 
financial statements, annual performance 
report and other legal and regulatory matters 
should be read together with the further 
context and necessary clarification included  
in this Audit Committee Report. 

Adv. D. Mitchell, C.A. (S.A.) 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

31 July 2019

International Jazz Day celebrated in the Castle’s Military Museum.



PART D 
Human Resource  
Management

The Kat-balcony (Puiij) 
foregrounded by statues 

of 4 warrior kings at  
the Castle.
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1. INTRODUCTION 

 Traditionally the Human Resources 

component of the CCB has been both its 

Achilles heel and strength. On the one 

hand its historical reliance on DOD-

remunerated staff assigned to the Castle 

has led to significant savings (hence the 

accumulation of historic surpluses), but 

on the other hand it attracted the ire of 

NT and the AGSA and delayed any 

decisiveness as to the ultimate civilian 

management structure of the CCB. The 

Board has now successfully resolved this 

matter but has been put on the backfoot 

with the departure of three managers 

and two other staff members.

 In June 2016, the Board finalized its 

required management structure which 

significantly whittled down the findings 

dealing with staff and the segregation of 

duties. However, a couple of the historic 

HR issues remained, and given the fact 

that the organization does not have a 

dedicated HR unit, a complete review of 

the HR policies and structure of the CCB 

is envisaged for the new financial year. 

 Key matters to be addressed include 

reviewing of all staff contracts, 

development of performance agreements 

to all staff, revising the remuneration 

scales, staff contentment, dealing with 

isolated disciplinary matters, staff 

benefits and obligations and building a 

truly high-performance Castle team.

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

 The CCB Management team comprised a 

total of 13 full-time CCB remunerated 

staff members at the end of FY 2018/19. 

Five of them left during the FY 2018/19.

 In addition, we still have access to three 

(3) museum artists, who are remunerated, 

and their performance managed, by the 

Department of Defence and are thus not 

included in the HR Tables below. Short-

term contract staff, interns (35) and 

additional casual staff employed to assist 

during the peak tourism season and after 

the departure of the NDPW Gardening 

Team, brings the total during the FY 

2018/19 to 53 members. 

Table 13: Personnel Cost by programme/ activity/ objective

Programme/activity/ 
objective

Total  
Expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel exp.  
as a % of  
total exp. 
(R’000)

No. of  
employees

Average  
personnel cost 
per employee

(R’000)

Administration R6 534 R4 901 75% 53* R92

Notes:* Includes 35 casuals required to supplement cleaners and assist with events and terrain 
management.
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Table 14: Personnel cost by salary band

Level

Personnel  
Expenditure  

(R’000)

% of personnel exp.  
to total  

personnel cost  
(R’000) No. of employees

Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000)

Top Management R1 881 38.5% 2 R941

Senior Management R929 19% 3* R310*

Professional qualified R540 11% 6* R90*

Skilled R252 5.1% 1 R252

Semi-skilled R594 12.1% 6** R99

Unskilled R705 14.4% 35 R20.14**

TOTAL R4 901 100% 53 R92.47

Notes: * Five staff members ended their contracts in the year

 ** Includes temporary employees, short-term employees, interns and casuals who were mostly 
deployed during events and special programmes after the NDPW Gardening team were withdrawn 
from the Castle.

 The first CCB staff member to be 

appointed on a performance contract 

basis was the chief executive who in 

terms of his contract: “…it being recorded 

that the Board has resolved and 

undertaken that an executive director 

who substantially exceeds the stipulated 

performance delivery targets may be 

considered for a supplementary per

formance bonus depending upon the 

Board’s operational and financial perfor

mance – this to be capped at a maximum 

of 20% of the incumbent’s guaranteed 

basic annual salary.” The 20% cap has 

since been reduced to 10% and applied to 

all staff contracts. 

 As part of the organizational perfor-

mance framework of the CCB, all future 

staff appointments will be dealt with in 

this manner. 

Table 15: Performance Rewards

Employment category
Performance  

rewards
Personnel  

Expenditure (R’000)

% of performance  
rewards to total  
personnel cost

Top Management 0 R4 901 0

Senior Management 0 R4 901 0

Professional qualified 0 R4 901 0

Skilled 0 - 0

Semi-skilled 0 - 0

Unskilled 0 - 0

TOTAL 0 R4 901 0
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Table 16: Training Costs

Programme/activity/ 
objective

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training  
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training  
Expenditure  

as a % of  
Personnel Cost

No. of  
employees 

trained

Avg training 
cost per  

employee

Administration R4 901 R2 0.04% 15 R0.133

Table 17: Employment and vacancies

Programme/activity/ 
objective

2017/2018 
No. of  

Employees

2018/2019 
Approved  

Posts

2018/2019 
No. of  

Employees
2018/2019 
Vacancies

% of  
vacancies

Administration 16* 16 13 3 18.%%

*One was a short-term contracted 350 Commemoration project manager.

Table 18: Employment and vacancies per employment category

Employment category

2017/2018 
No. of  

Employees

2018/2019 
Approved  

Posts

2018/2019 
No. of  

Employees
2018/2019 
Vacancies

% of 
 vacancies

Top Management 2 2 2 0 0%

Senior Management 3 3 0* 3** 100%

Professional qualified** 5 5 4 1 20%

Skilled 1 1 1 0 0%

Semi-skilled 3 3 3 0 0%

Unskilled 2 2 2 0 0%

TOTAL 16 16 12 4 25%

*Two managers resigned as at the end of FY and one manager was dismissed

**1 Tour-guide Coordinator resigned

*** 1 Precinct Officer resigned

3. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

 The CCB traditionally had a very peculiar 

human resources component. This is 

partially due to the availability of SANDF 

and Department of Public Works staff on 

site. However, the Board articulated the 

necessity to employ additional staff to 

execute their full mandate. Starting with 

the chief executive, the Board approved  

a structure to appoint a CFO, Heritage, 

Cultural an Education Coordinator,  

Events Coordinator, Tourism Marketing 

Coordinator, a Precinct Coordinator and 

permanent cleaning staff. By the end of 

the FY, the CCB lost three managers and 

two other staff members 
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Table 19: Employment changes

Salary Band

Employment at 
beginning of 

period Appointments Terminations

Employment at  
end of the 

period

Top Management 2 - - 2

Senior Management 3 - 3 0

Professional qualified 5 - 1 4

Skilled 1 - - 1

Semi-skilled 3 - - 3

Unskilled 2 - - 2

TOTAL 16 - 4 12

Table 20: Reasons for staff leaving

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death - -

Resignation 4 80%

Dismissal 1 20%

Retirement - -

Ill health - -

Expiry of contract - -

Other - -

TOTAL 5 100%

Table 21: Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of Disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Warning -

Written Warning -

Final Written warning -

Dismissal 1

TOTAL 1
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Table 22: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status (Male)

Levels

MALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 1 0 0

Senior Management 1 0 0 0

Professionally quali-
fied qualified

2 2 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 1

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 1

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 4 3 0 2

Table 23: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status (Female)

Levels

FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 1 1 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 1 0 0

Unskilled 1 2 0 0

TOTAL 2 4 0 0

Table 24: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status (Disabled)

Levels

DISABLED STAFF

MALE FEMALE

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0

Senior Management 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0

Skilled 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0

Unskilled 0 0

TOTAL 0 0
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Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on Castle Control Board

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of 
the Castle Control Board set out on pages 
56-118, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2019, the 
statement of financial, statement of 
changes in net assets, cash flow statement 
and statement of comparison of budget 
information with actual information for 
the year then ended, as well as the notes 
to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting 
policies.  

2. In my opinion the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Castle Control 
Board as at 31 March 2019, and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with South 
African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 
Standards of GRAP) and the requirements 
of the Public Finance Management Act, 
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the 
Castle Management Act of South Africa, 
1993 (Act No. 207 of 1993). 

Context for the opinion

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with 
the International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). My responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the 
auditor-general’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section 
of this auditor’s report.  

4. I am independent of the entity in 
accordance with sections 290 and 291 of 
the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of ethics for 
professional accountants, and parts 1 and 
3 of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ International 
code of ethics for professional 

accountants (including International 

Independence Standards) (IESBA code) 

as well as the ethical requirements  

that are relevant to my audit in South 

Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the IESBA codes. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Material uncertainty relating to going 
concern

6. I draw attention to the matter below. My 

opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

7. I draw attention to note 34 to the financial 

statements which states that the surplus 

in the financial statements is due to the 

in-kind donation of assets received from 

the Department of Military Veterans. 

Taking this into account, a material 

uncertainty exists that may cast 

significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. These 

events or conditions, indicate that a 

material uncertainty exists that may cast 

significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 

continue as a going concern.  

Emphasis of matter

8. I draw attention to the matter below. My 

opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

Restatement of corresponding figures

9. As disclosed in note 32 to the financial 

statements, the corresponding figures for 

31 March 2018 were restated as a result of 

an error in the financial statements of the 

entity at, and for the year ended, 31 March 

2019.  
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Responsibilities of the accounting 
authority for the financial statements

10. The accounting authority is responsible 
for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in accordance 
with SA Standards of GRAP and the 
requirements of the PFMA and the Castle 
Management Act, and for such internal 
control as the accounting authority 
determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

11. In preparing the financial statements, the 
accounting authority is responsible for 
assessing the Castle Control Board’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters relating 
to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the 
appropriate governance structure either 
intends to liquidate the public entity or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements

12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with the 

ISAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, 

individually or in aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements. 

13. A further description of my responsibilities 

for the audit of the financial statements is 

included in the annexure to this auditor’s 

report. 

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 

of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 

2004) (PAA) and the general notice 

issued in terms thereof, I have a 

responsibility to report material findings 

on the reported performance information 

against predetermined objectives for 

selected programmes presented in the 

annual performance report. I performed 

procedures to identify findings but not to 

gather evidence to express assurance.

15. My procedures address the reported 

performance information, which must be 

based on the approved performance 

planning documents of the public entity. I 

have not evaluated the completeness and 

appropriateness of the performance 

indicators/ measures included in the 

planning documents. My procedures also 

did not extend to any disclosures or 

assertions relating to planned per-

formance strategies and information in 

respect of future periods that may be 

included as part of the reported 

performance information. Accordingly, 

my findings do not extend to these 

matters.  

16. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability 

of the reported performance information 

in accordance with the criteria developed 

from the performance management and 

reporting framework, as defined in the 

general notice, for the following selected 

programme presented in the annual 

performance report of the public entity 

for the year ended 31 March 2019: 
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Programme Pages in the  
annual  

performance 
report

Programme 2 – Ensure the mainte-
nance, preservation, interpretation and 
showcasing of the history of the Castle

27 to 28

17. I performed procedures to determine 

whether the reported performance 

information was properly presented and 

whether performance was consistent 

with the approved performance planning 

documents. I performed further 

procedures to determine whether the 

indicators and related targets were 

measurable and relevant, and assessed 

the reliability of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was 

valid, accurate and complete. 

18. I did not raise any material findings on 

the usefulness and reliability of the 

reported performance information for 

this programme: 

Other matters

19. I draw attention to the matters below. 

Achievement of planned targets

20. Refer to the annual performance report 

on pages 27 to 31 for information on the 

achievement of planned targets for the 

year and explanations provided for the 

under/ over achievement of a number of 

targets.  

Unaudited supplementary information

21. The supplementary information set out 

on pages 24 to 26 and page 31 does not 

form part of the annual performance 

report and is presented as additional 

information. I have not audited this 

information and, accordingly, I do not 

express a conclusion on them. 

Adjustment of material misstatements

22. I identified material misstatements in the 

annual performance report submitted for 

auditing. These material misstatements 

were on the reported performance 

information of Programme 2: Ensure the 

maintenance, preservation, interpretation 

and showcasing of the history of the 

Castle. As management subsequently 

corrected the misstatements, I did not 

raise any material findings on the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information. 

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

23. In accordance with the PAA and the 

general notice issued in terms thereof, I 

have a responsibility to report material 

findings on the compliance of the entity 

with specific matters in key legislation. I 

performed procedures to identify findings 

but not to gather evidence to express 

assurance.  

24. The material finding on compliance with 

specific matters in key legislations is as 

follows: 

Annual financial statements, 
performance Reports and annual reports 

25. The financial statements submitted for 

auditing were not prepared in accordance 

with the prescribed financial reporting 

framework and supported by full and 

proper records, as required by section 

55(1) (a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material 

misstatements identified by the auditors 

in the submitted financial statement were 

corrected subsequently, resulting in the 

financial statements receiving an 

unqualified opinion. 
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Other information
26. The accounting authority is responsible 

for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information 
included in the annual report. The other 
information does not include the financial 
statements, the auditor’s report and 
those selected programmes presented in 
the annual performance report that have 
been specifically reported in this auditor’s 
report.  

27. My opinion on the financial statements 
and findings on the reported performance 
information and compliance with 
legislation do not cover the other 
information and I do not express an audit 
opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

28. In connection with my audit, my 
responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements and the selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance 
report, or my knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  

29. If, based on the work I have performed, I 
conclude that there is a material 
misstatement in this other information, I 
am required to report that fact. 

Internal control deficiencies
30. I considered internal control relevant to 

my audit of the financial statements, 
reported performance information and 
compliance with applicable legislation; 
however, my objective was not to express 
any form of assurance on it. The matters 
reported below are limited to the 
significant internal control deficiencies 
that resulted in the findings on the annual 
performance report and the findings on 
compliance with legislation included in 
this report. 

• The controls in place to ensure  
that the financial statements and 
annual performance report are free 
from material misstatements are 
inade quate. Leadership did not suf-
ficiently emphasise the importance 
of complying with the applicable 
accounting prescripts. There is also 
not sufficient monitoring of com-
pliance with these prescripts.  

Other reports

31. I draw attention to the following 
engagement that could have, an impact 

on the matters reported in the entity’s 
financial statements, reported per-
formance information, compliance with 
applicable legislation and other related 
matters. These reports did not form part 
of my opinion on the financial statements 
or my findings on the reported 
performance information or compliance 
with legislation. 

Investigation

32. An investigation was conducted into 
instances of fraud committed by an 
employee of the CCB during the year. The 
employee was dismissed and charges 
were laid against the employee with the 
South African Police Service. The 
investigation was still on-going at the 
date of this report. 

Cape Town

31 July 2019
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

1. As part of an audit in accordance with 
the ISAs, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout my audit of the 
financial statements, and the procedures 
performed on reported performance 
information for selected programmes 
and on the public entity’s compliance 
with respect to the selected subject 
matters. 

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the 
audit of the financial statements as 
described in this auditor’s report, I also: 

• identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial 
statements whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control 

• obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the 
public entity’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by the accounting authority 

• conclude on the appropriateness of 
the use of the going concern by  
the accounting authority in the 
preparation of the financial state-

ments. I also conclude, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. 
If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to 
draw attention in my auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements about the 
material uncertainty or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
the opinion on the financial 
statements. My conclusions are 
based on the information available to 
me at the date of this auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions 
may cause a public entity to cease 
continuing as a going concern

• evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation 

Communication with those charged with 
governance

3. I communicate with the accounting 
authority regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my 
audit.  

4. I also confirm to the accounting authority 
that I have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, 
and communicate all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to have a bearing on my 
independence and, where applicable, 
related safeguards.  



PART F 
Annual Financial  
Statements

Entrance to the  
Secunda Hall, a popular 

Event and Exhibition 
space.



52

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

The reports and statements set out below comprise the Annual Financial Statements:

Contents Page

Accounting Authority’s Report . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53 

Accounting Authority’s Responsibility and Approval  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54

Statement of Financial Position . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56

Statement of Financial Performance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57

Statement of Changes in Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58

Statement of Cash Flows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60

Accounting Policies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63

Notes to the Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 83

The almost obscure, third entrance to the Castle.



53

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S REPORT

1. Incorporation

The Castle Control Board (CCB) was 

established by an Act of Parliament, the Castle 

Management Act (Act 207 of 1993) and is 

listed as a national public entity in schedule 3A 

of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 

(PFMA). The Board of the CCB acts as the 

accounting authority in terms of the PFMA.

2. Review of activities

Main business and operations

The Castle Control Board is a service-

orientated public entity, striving to optimise 

the Castle of Good Hope’s tourism potential 

and its accessibility to the public and to 

preserve and protect its cultural and  

military heritage. 

The operating results and state of affairs of the 

entity are fully set-out in the attached financial 

statements and do not, in our opinion, require 

any further comment. 

3. Going concern
The Board is aware of financial challanges that 

have a negative impact on the CCB’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. However, the 

Board believes that the CCB has access to 

adequate financial resources, through the 

intervention of the Ministry of Defence, to 

continue operations for the foreseeable future 

and accordingly the annual financial statements 

have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

The Board is not aware of any new material 

changes that may adversely impact on the 

CCB. The Board is also not aware of any 

material non-compliance with statutory or 

regulatory requirements or of any pending 

changes to legislation that may affect the CCB.

4. Subsequent events
There were no reportable vents after reporting 

date. 

5. Accounting Authority
In terms of the Castle Management Act, the 

Castle of Good Hope, a national heritage site, 

has been placed under the control of the Castle 

Control Board. The Board of the CCB comprises 

of various national and provincial stakeholders. 

The stakeholders currently represented on the 

CCB Board are indicated below: 

Stakeholders Name

SANDF - Chief of Logistics (Chair-
man)

Lieutenant General JS 
Mbuli

Cape Town Regional Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry

Ms C. de Vries

Iziko Museums of South Africa
Ms R. Omar ( Replaced 
by Dr B. Ndlhovu)

Department of Public Works Vacant

South African Heritage Resources 
Agency

Vacant

Officer Commanding Army Support 
Base Western Cape

Colonel M.B Feni

City of Cape Town Mr D. Hart

South African Tourism Board 
(WESGRO)

Ms J. Lain

Appointed by the Minister of De-
fence and Military Veterans

Adv. D. Mitchell

Appointed by the Minister of De-
fence and Military Veterans

Ms A. Aggenbach

Western Cape Provincial Legislature Vacant

Chief Executive Officer Mr C.T Gilfellan

Chief Financial Officer Mr M. Ngewu

Secretary Mr D. Williams
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6. Secretary
The secretary of the Board is  

Mr. Derek Williams of:

Business address: Cnr Castle and  

 Darling Streets 

 Cape Town 

 8001

Postal address: P.O Box 1 

 Cape Town 

 8000

7. Bankers

ABSA 

8. Auditors

In accordance with section 20 of the Castle 

Management Act the Auditor General South 

Africa acts as auditors of the CCB. 

9. Executive Authority

The executive authority responsible for the 

entity is the Minister of Defence and Military 

Veterans.

The Minister has delegated this responsibility 

to the Deputy Minister of Defence and Military 

Veterans.

 
Accounting Authority’s Responsibilities and Approval

The Accounting Authority is required to 

maintain adequate accounting records and is 

responsible for the content and integrity of the 

annual financial statements and related 

information included in this report. It is the 

responsibility of the CCB to ensure that the 

annual financial statements fairly present the 

state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the 

financial year and the results of its operations 

and cash flows for the period then ended. The 

external auditors are engaged to express an 

independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements and were given unrestricted access 

to all financial records and related data. 

The annual financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the South African 

Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, 

guidelines and directives issued by the 

Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and the 

Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). 

The annual financial statements are based 

upon appropriate accounting policies 

consistently applied and supported by 

reasonable and prudent judgements and 

estimates. 

The Accounting Authority acknowledges that 

it is ultimately responsible for the system of 

internal financial control established by the 

entity and places considerable importance on 

maintaining a strong control environment. To 

enable it to meet these requirements, the 

Accounting Authority sets standards for 

internal control aimed at reducing the risk of 

error or loss in a cost effective manner. The 

standards include proper delegation of 

responsibilities within a clearly defined 

framework, effective accounting procedures 

and adequate segre-gation of duties to ensure 

an acceptable level of risk. 

These controls are monitored throughout the 

entity and all employees are required to 

maintain the highest ethical standards in 

ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in 

a manner that in all reasonable circumstances 

is above reproach. The focus of risk 

management in the entity is on identifying, 

assessing, managing and monitoring all known 
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forms of risk across the entity. While operating 

risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity 

endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 

and ethical behaviour are applied and managed 

within predetermined procedures and 

constraints. 

The Accounting Authority is of the opinion, 

based on the information and explanations 

given by management that the system of 

internal control provides reasonable assurance 

that the financial records may be relied on for 

the preparation of the annual financial 

statements. However, any system of internal 

financial control can provide only reasonable, 

and not any absolute, assurance against 

material misstatement or loss. 

The Board has reviewed the CCB’s cash flow 

forecast for the year ended 31 March 2020 

and, in the light of this review and the current 

financial position, is satisfied that the CCB has 

adequate resources to continue in operational 

existence for the foreseeable future. 

Although the Board is primarily responsible 

for the financial affairs of the entity, it is 

supported by the CCB’s external auditors. 

The external auditors are responsible for 

independently reviewing and reporting on the 

CCB’s annual financial statements. The annual 

financial statements have been examined by 

the CCB’s external auditors and their report is 

presented on pages. 

The annual financial statements set out on 

pages 56 - 124, which have been prepared on 

the going concern basis, were approved by the 

accounting authority on 31 July 2019 and were 

signed on its behalf by: 

LIEUTENANT GENERAL J.S MBULI
Chairman

Islamic art exhibition at the Ramadaan for All festival held at the Castle.
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Actual

Note 2019 2018

R R

ASSETS

Current Assets 162 940 1 060 343

Inventories 2 2 622 6 799

Receivables from Exchange Transactions 3 20 198 172 524

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 140 120 881 020

Non-Current Assets 4 678 517 1 782 120

Property, Plant and Equipment 5 3 089 626 400 159

Intangible Assets 6 206 931 1

Heritage Assets 7 1 381 960 1 381 960

Total Assets 4 841 457 2 842 464

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 1 294 940 1 296 639

Provisions 8 666 436 648 798

Payables from Exchange Transactions 9 628 504 647 841

Total Liabilities 1 294 940 1 296 639

Total Assets and Liabilities 3 546 518 1 545 825

NET ASSETS 3 546 518 1 545 825

Accumulated Surplus / (Deficit) 10 3 546 518 1 545 825

Total Net Assets 3 546 518 1 545 825

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 MARCH 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

Note 2018 2019

R R

REVENUE

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Sales 11 4 317 912 4 123 521

Special Days 12 - -

Interest Earned 13 14 019 116 815

Rental of Facilities and Equipment 14 1 258 365 1 131 902

Other Revenue 15 128 883 450 137

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

Public Contributions and Donations 16 3 342 445 270 700

Total Revenue 9 061 624 6 093 075

EXPENDITURE

Employee Related Costs 17 4 901 388 5 796 662

Administration Costs 18 - 64 000

Contracted Services 19 242 119 197 326

Cost of Sales 4 177 -

Debt Impairment 20 126 495 270 000

Depreciation and Amortisation 21 204 872 91 226

Repairs and Maintenance 22 27 758 110 566

Share of Ticket Sales N/A - -

Special Days 23 151 523 161 454

General Expenses 24 1 388 027 2 022 910

Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 25 14 508 9 072

Total Expenditure 7 060 867 8 723 216

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 2 000 757 (2 630 141)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

Description

Total for  
Accumulated 

Surplus/(Deficit)
Account

Total

R R

2018

Balance at 31 March 2017 4 175 966 4 175 966

Restated Balance 4 175 966 4 175 966

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year (2 630 141) (2 630 141)

Balance at 31 March 2018 1 545 825 1 545 825

2019

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 2 000 757 2 000 757

Other movements (64) (64)

Balance at 31 March 2019 3 546 518 3 546 518
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Note 2019 2018

R R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Interest Received 13 14 019 116 815

Rental of Facilities & Equipment, Sales and Other Services 14 5 502 733 4 918 902

Other Receipts 15 128 883 450 137

Public Contributions and Donations 16 800 700

Payments

Employee Related Costs 17 (4 720 262) (5 497 073)

Suppliers Paid 24 (1 503 365) (2 544 638)

Other Payments 24 (150 157) (225 901)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (727 349) (2 781 058)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 5 (13 551) (169 513)

Purchase of Intangible Assets 6 - -

Proceeds on disposal of PPE - -

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (13 551) (169 513)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (740 900) (2 950 571)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 881 020 3 831 591

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 4 140 120 881 020
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Financial Performance

Explanation of Variances between 
Approved Budget and Actual

Reasons for Variances greater than 10% 

between Approved Budget and Actual Amount 

on the various items disclosed in the Statement 

of Financial Performance are explained below:

Special Days:

Reasonable care was taken to ensure that 

expenditure is skewed strictly towards events 

related to the Castle of Good Hope. 

Contracted Services:

There was a saving in the expenditure owing 

to cost saving initiatives. 

Depreciation and Amortisation:

Increse is due to the effect of assets donated 

to the entity by the Department of Military 

Veterans. 

Rental of Facilities and Equipment:

Lower than expected demand for the site 

especially for film shoots and other events. 

Repairs and Maintenance:

There was a saving as the Department of 

Defence took over the repairs and maintenance 

of the site. 

Other Income:

The anticipated income from the restaurant, 

rental of office space, income from curio shop 

did not come to fruition. 

General Expenses :

The entity endeavoured to control costs during 

the year. 

Interest earned:

The interest was significantly affected by the 

negative cash flows. 

Public Contributions and Donations:

Assets were donated to the entity by the 

Department of Military Veterans. 

Employee Related Costs:

Staff members who resigned during the year 

were not replaced. Performance bonus 

incentives were foregone owing to the  

negative cash flow. 

Contracted Services:

Savings were made from the maintenance of 

the website as well as from the provision of  

IT services. 

Sales:

There were fewer paying tourists than originally 

anticipated. 

Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and 
Equipment:

It was not budgeted for Loss on Disposal of 

Property, Plant and Equipment. 
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RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) WITH THE SURPLUS/
(DEFICIT) IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

Description 2018/19 2017/18

R R

Net surplus/(deficit) per the statement of financial performance 2 000 757 (2 630 141)

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Sales 682 088 (123 521)

Special Days 55 000 -

Interest Earned (14 019) 483 185

Rental of Facilities and Equipment 961 635 2 482 387

Other Revenue 446 117 (450 137)

Gains on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment - -

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

Public Contributions and Donations (3 342 445) (270 700)

Expenditure

Employee Related Costs (804 612) 1 518 662

Administration Costs - (218 750)

Contracted Services (12 881) (179 885)

Cost of Sales 4 177 -

Debt Impairment 76 495 270 000

Depreciation and Amortisation 164 872 91 226

Repairs and Maintenance (22 242) 22 182

Share of Ticket Sales - (665 000)

Special Days (52 477) (791 298)

General Expenses (146 973) 452 719

Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 4 508 9 072

Net surplus/deficit per approved budget (0) 0
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

 The Annual Financial Statements have 

been prepared on an Accrual Basis of 

accounting and are in accordance with 

the historical cost convention, except 

where indicated otherwise. 

 The Annual Financial Statements have 

been prepared in accordance with the 

effective Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practices 

(GRAP), as approved by the Minister of 

Finance, including any interpretations, 

guidelines and directives issued by the 

Accounting Standards Board and the 

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 

(Act No. 1 of 1999). 

1.1 Changes in Accounting Policy and 
Comparability

 Accounting Policies have been consis-

tently applied, except where otherwise 

indicated below. 

 For the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 

March 2019 the entity has adopted the 

accounting framework as set out in 

paragraph 1 above. The details of any 

resulting changes in Accounting Policy 

and comparative restatements are set 

out below and in the relevant Notes to 

the Annual Financial Statements. 

 The entity changes an Accounting Policy 

only if the change: 

(a) is required by a Standard of GRAP; 

or 

(b) results in the Annual Financial 

Statements providing reliable and 

more relevant information about the 

effects of transactions, other events 

or conditions on the entity’s financial 

position, financial performance or 

cash flow. 

1.2 Critical Judgements, Estimations 
and Assumptions

 In the application of the entity’s 

Accounting Policies, which are described 

below, management is required to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions 

about the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities that are not readily apparent 

from other sources. The estimates and 

associated assumptions are based on 

historical experience and other factors 

that are considered to be reasonable 

under the circumstances, the results of 

which form the basis of making the 

judgements about carrying values of 

assets and liabilities that are not readily 

apparent from other sources. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates.

 These estimates and underlying assump-

tions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the 

estimate is revised if the revision affects 

only that period or in the period of the 

revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future periods.

 The following are the critical judgements 

and estimations that management have 

made in the process of applying the 

entity’s Accounting Policies and that 

have the most significant effect on the 

amounts recognised in Annual Financial 

Statements: 
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1.2.1 Revenue Recognition

 Accounting Policy 8.2 on Revenue from 

Exchange Transactions and Accounting 

Policy 8.3 on Revenue from Non-

exchange Transactions describes the 

conditions under which revenue will be 

recorded by the management of the 

entity. 

 In making their judgement, the 

management considered the detailed 

criteria for the recognition of revenue as 

set out in GRAP 9 (Revenue from 

Exchange Transactions) and GRAP 23 

(Revenue from Non-exchange Trans-

actions). As far as Revenue from Non-

exchange Transactions is concerned (see 

Basis of Preparation above), and, in 

particular whether the entity when goods 

are sold, had transferred to the buyer the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership 

of the goods and when services is 

rendered, whether the services have been 

rendered. Also of importance is the 

estimation process involved in initially 

measuring revenue at the fair value 

thereof. Management of the entity is 

satisfied that recognition of the revenue 

in the current year is appropriate. 

1.2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

 The classification of Financial Assets and 

Liabilities into categories is based on 

judgement by management. Accounting 

Policy 7.1 on Financial Assets Classification 

and Accounting Policy 7.2 on Financial 

Liabilities Classification describe the 

factors and criteria considered by the 

management of the entity in the 

classification of Financial Assets and 

Liabilities. 

 In making the above-mentioned judge-

ment, management considered the 

definition and recognition criteria for  

the classification of Financial Instruments 

as set out in GRAP 104 (Financial 

Instruments ). 

1.2.3 Impairment of Financial Assets

 Accounting Policy 7.4 on Impairment of 

Financial Assets describes the process 

followed to determine the value at which 

Financial Assets should be impaired. In 

making the estimation of the impairment, 

the management of the entity considered 

the detailed criteria of impairment of 

Financial Assets as set out in GRAP 104 

(Financial Instruments) and used its 

judgement to select a variety of methods 

and make assumptions that are mainly 

based on market conditions existing at 

the end of the reporting period. The 

management of the entity is satisfied that 

impairment of Financial Assets recorded 

during the year is appropriate. 

• Impairment of Trade Receivables:

 The calculation in respect of the 

impairment of debtors is based on an 

assessment of the extent to which 

debtors have defaulted on payments 

already due, and an assessment of 

their ability to make payments based 

on their creditworthiness. This is 

performed per service-identifiable 

categories across all classes of 

debtors. 

 The total increase in estimation of 

the impairment of Receivables from 

Exchange Transactions is disclosed  

in Notes 3 to the Annual Financial 

Statements. 

1.2.4 Useful lives of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible Assets

 As described in Accounting Policies 3.3 

and 5.2, the entity depreciates its 
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Property, Plant & Equipment and 

amortises its Intangible Assets over the 

estimated useful lives of the assets, taking 

into account the residual values of the 

assets at the end of their useful lives, 

which is determined when the assets  

are available for use. 

 The useful lives of assets are based on 

management’s estimation. Management 

considered the impact of technology, 

availability of capital funding, service 

requirements and required return on 

assets in order to determine the optimum 

useful life expectation, where appropriate.

 The estimation of residual values of assets 

is based on management’s judgement as 

to whether the assets will be sold or used 

to the end of their useful lives, and in 

what condition they will be at that time.

1.2.5 Impairment: Write-down of Property, 
Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets 
and Heritage Assets

 Accounting Policy 6 on Impairment of 

Assets and Accounting Policy 4.2 on 

Intangible Assets – Subsequent 

Measurement, Amortisation and 

Impairment describe the conditions 

under which non-financial assets are 

tested for potential impairment losses by 

the management of the entity. Significant 

estimates and judgements are made 

relating to impairment testing of  

Property, Plant and Equipment and 

impairment testing of Intangible Assets

 In making the above-mentioned estimates 

and judgement, management considered 

the subsequent measurement criteria 

and indicators of potential impairment 

losses as set out in GRAP 21 (Impairment 

of Non-cash Generating Assets) and 

GRAP 26 (Impairment of Cash Generating 

Assets). In particular, the calculation of 

the recoverable service amount for PPE 

and Intangible Assets involves significant 

judgment by management. 

 Estimated impairments during the year 

to Property, Plant and Equipment, 

Intangible Assets and Heritage Assets 

are disclosed in Notes 5, 6 and 7 to the 

Annual Financial Statements, if applicable.

1.2.6 Budget Information

 Deviations between budget and actual 

amounts are regarded as material 

differences when a 10% deviation exists. 

All material differences are explained as 

footnotes to the Statement of Comparison 

of Budgeted and Actual Amounts. 

1.3 Presentation Currency

 The Annual Financial Statements are 

presented in South African Rand, rounded 

off to the nearest Rand which is the 

entity’s functional currency. 

1.4 Going Concern Assumption

 The Annual Financial Statements have 

been prepared on a Going Concern 

Basis. 

1.5 Offsetting

 Assets, Liabilities, Revenues and 

Expenses have not been offset except 

when offsetting is required or permitted 

by a Standard of GRAP. 

1.6 Standards, Amendments to 
Standards and Interpretations 
issued but not yet effective

 The following GRAP Standards have been 

issued but are not yet effective and have 

not been early adopted by the entity: 

• GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures 

(Revised) 
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• GRAP 32 Service Concession 

Arrangement Grantor - issued August 

2013 

• GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables - 

issued September 2013 

• GRAP 109 Accounting by Principals 

and Agents - issued July 2015 

• IGRAP 17 Service Concession 

Arrangements where a Grantor 

controls a significant Residual Interest 

in an Asset 

 The ASB Directive 5, paragraph 29, sets 

out the principles for the application of 

the GRAP 3 guidelines in the determination 

of the GRAP Reporting Framework 

hierarchy as set out in the standard of 

GRAP 3 on Accounting Policies, Changes 

in Accounting Estimates and Errors .

 Where a standard of GRAP is approved 

as effective, it replaces the equiva- 

lent statement of International Public 

Sector Accounting Standards Board, 

International Financial Reporting 

Standards or Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles. Where a standard 

of GRAP has been issued but is not yet in 

effect, the entity may select to apply the 

principles established in that standard in 

developing an appropriate Accounting 

Policy dealing with a particular section or 

event before applying paragraph 12 of 

the Standard of GRAP on Accounting 

Policies, Changes in Accounting  

Estimates and Errors. 

 The entity applied the principles 

established in the following Standards of 

GRAP that have been issued but are not 

yet effective, in developing appropriate 

Accounting Policies dealing with the 

following transactions, but have not early 

adopted these Standards: 

• GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures 

(Revised) 

 Management has considered all of the 

above-mentioned GRAP Standards 

issued but not yet effective and 

anticipates that the adoption of these 

standards will not have a significant 

impact on the financial position, financial 

performance or cash flows of the entity.

 Amendments have been made to 

numerous standards based on 

adjustments to the standards of GRAP 16, 

GRAP 17, GRAP 31 and GRAP 104. The 

amendments are only effective for 

periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019 

and management has chosen not to  

early adopt these amendments. 

2. NET ASSETS

 Included in the Net Assets of the entity 

are the following Reserves that are 

maintained in terms of specific 

requirements: 

2.1 Accumulated Surplus

 Included in the Accumulated Surplus of 

the entity are the following Reserves that 

are maintained in terms of specific 

requirements: 

2.1.1 Military Tattoo Reserve

 The Military Tattoo Reserve represents  

a portion of the Accumulated Surplus 

that can be attributed to military  

tattoos previously staged at the Castle of 

Good Hope. 
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT

3.1 Initial Recognition
 Property, Plant and Equipment are 

tangible non-current assets that are held 
for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, rental to others, or  
for administrative purposes, and are 
expected to be used during more  
than one year. 

 The cost of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is recognised as an asset if, 
and only if, it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to  
the entity, and if the cost or fair value of 
the item can be measured reliably. 

 Property, Plant and Equipment are 
initially recognised at cost on its 
acquisition date or in the case of assets 
acquired by grants or donations, deemed 
cost, being the fair value of the asset on 
initial recognition. The cost of an item of 
Property, Plant and Equipment is the 
purchase price and other costs 
attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by the entity. Trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at 
the cost. The cost also includes the 
necessary costs of dismantling and 
removing the asset and restoring the  
site on which it is located. 

 When significant components of an item 
of Property, Plant and Equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted 
for as separate items (major components) 
of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

 Where an asset is acquired by the entity 
for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a 
non-exchange transaction), the cost is 

deemed to be equal to the fair value of 
that asset on the date acquired. 

 The cost of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment acquired in exchange for non-
monetary assets or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-
monetary assets is measured at the fair 
value of the asset given up, unless the fair 
value of the asset received is more clearly 
evident. If the acquired item could not be 
measured at its fair value, its cost is 
measured at the carrying amount of  
the asset given up. 

 Major spare parts and servicing 
equipment qualify as Property, Plant and 
Equipment when the entity expects to 
use them during more than one period. 
Similarly, if the major spare parts and 
servicing equipment can be used only in 
connection with an item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment, they are accounted 
for as Property, Plant and Equipment.

3.2 Subsequent Measurement

 Subsequent expenditure relating to 
Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised if it is probable that future 
economic benefits or potential service 
delivery associated with the subsequent 
expenditure will flow to the entity and 
the cost or fair value of the subsequent 
expenditure can be reliably measured. 
Subsequent expenditure incurred on an 
asset is only capitalised when it increases 
the capacity or future economic benefits 
associated with the asset. Where the 
entity replaces parts of an asset, it de-
recognises the part of the asset being 
replaced and capitalises the new 
component. 

 Subsequently all Property Plant and 
Equipment are measured at cost, less  
accumulated depreciation and accumu-
lated impairment losses. 
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 Compensation from third parties for 

items of Property, Plant and Equipment 

that were impaired, lost or given up is 

included in the Statement of Financial 

Performance when the compensation 

becomes receivable. 

3.3 Depreciation

 Depreciation on assets is calculated on 

cost, using the Straight-line Method, to 

allocate their cost to their residual values 

over the estimated useful lives of the 

assets. The depreciation method used 

reflects the pattern in which the asset’s 

future economic benefits or service 

potential are expected to be consumed 

by the entity. Each part of an item of 

Property, Plant and Equipment with a 

cost that is significant in relation to  

the total cost of the item is depreciated 

separately. 

 Depreciation only commences when  

the asset is available for use, unless stated 

otherwise. The depreciation rates are 

based on the following estimated  

useful lives: 

Asset Class Useful 
Life %

Other Assets

Computer Equipment 5 years 20%

Office Equipment 10 years 10%

 The assets’ residual values, estimated 

useful lives and depreciation method are 

reviewed annually and adjusted 

prospectively, if appropriate, at each 

reporting date. Reviewing the useful life 

of an asset on an annual basis does not 

require the entity to amend the previous 

estimate unless expectations differ from 

the previous estimate. 

3.4 Derecognition

 The carrying amount of an item of 

Property, Plant and Equipment is 

derecognised on disposal, or when no 

future economic benefits or service 

potential are expected from its use  

or disposal. 

 The gain or loss arising from the 

derecognition of an item of Property, 

Plant and Equipment is included in 

surplus or deficit when the item is 

derecognised. Gains are not classified  

as revenue. 

 Gains or losses are calculated as the  

difference between the carrying value of 

assets (cost less accumulated deprecia-

tion and accumulated impairment losses) 

and the proceeds from disposals are  

included in the Statement of Financial 

Performance as a gain or loss on disposal 

of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

4.1 Initial Recognition

 Identifiable non-monetary assets without 

physical substance are classified and 

recognised as Intangible Assets. The 

entity recognises an Intangible Asset in 

its Statement of Financial Position only 

when it is probable that the expected 

future economic benefits or service 

potential that are attributable to the  

asset will flow to the entity and the  

cost or fair value of the asset can be 

measured reliably. 

 Internally generated Intangible Assets 

are subject to strict recognition criteria 

before they are capitalised. Research 

expenditure is recognised as an expense 

as it is incurred. Costs incurred on 
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development projects (relating to the 

design and testing of new or improved 

products) are recognised as Intangible 

Assets when the following criteria  

are fulfilled: 

(a) It is technically feasible to complete 

the Intangible Asset so that it will be 

available for use; 

(b) Management intends to complete 

the Intangible Asset and use or sell it;

(c) There is an ability to use or sell the 

Intangible Asset; 

(d) It can be demonstrated how the 

Intangible Asset will generate 

probable future economic benefits;

(e) Adequate technical, financial and 

other resources to complete the 

development and to use or sell the 

Intangible Asset are available; and

(f) The expenditure attributable to  

the Intangible Asset during its 

development can be reliably 

measured. 

 Other development expenditures that do 

not meet these criteria are recognised as 

an expense as incurred. Development 

costs previously recognised as an 

expense are not recognised as an asset in 

a subsequent period. Capitalised 

development costs are recorded as 

Intangible Assets and amortised from  

the point at which the asset is available 

for use. Development assets are tested 

for impairment annually, in accordance 

with GRAP 21 or GRAP 26. 

 Intangible Assets are initially recognised 

at cost. The cost of an Intangible Asset is 

the purchase price and other costs 

attributable to bring the Intangible Asset 

to the location and condition necessary 

for it to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by the entity, or where 

an Intangible Asset is acquired at no cost, 

or for a nominal cost, the cost shall be  

its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Trade discounts and rebates are  

deducted in arriving at the cost. 

 The cost of an Intangible Asset acquired 

in exchange for non-monetary assets or 

monetary assets, or a combination of 

monetary and non-monetary assets, is 

measured at the fair value of the asset 

given up, unless the fair value of the asset 

received is more clearly evident. If the 

acquired item could not be measured at 

its fair value, its cost is measured at the 

carrying amount of the asset given up. If 

the acquired item’s fair value was not 

determinable, it’s deemed cost is the 

carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

4.2 Subsequent Measurement, 
Amortisation and Impairment

 After initial recognition, Intangible Assets 

are carried at cost less any accumulated 

amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment losses. 

 Expenditure on an intangible item that 

was initially recognised as an expense 

shall not be recognised as part of the 

cost of an Intangible Asset at a later date.

 In terms of GRAP 31, Intangible Assets 

are distinguished between internally 

generated Intangible Assets and other 

Intangible Assets. It is further 

distinguished between indefinite or finite 

useful lives. Amortisation is charged on a 

Straight-line Basis over the Intangible 

Assets’ useful lives. The residual value of 

Intangible Assets with finite useful lives is 

zero, unless an active market exists. 

Where Intangible Assets are deemed to 
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have indefinite useful lives, such Intangible 

Assets are not amortised. However, such 

Intangible Assets are subject to an  

annual impairment test. 

 Amortisation only commences when the 

asset is available for use, unless stated 

otherwise. The amortisation rates are 

based on the following estimated useful 

lives: 

Asset Class Years

Computer Software 3

 Intangible Assets are annually tested for 

impairment as described in Accounting 

Policy 6 on Impairment of Assets, 

including Intangible Assets not yet 

available for use. Where items of 

Intangible Assets have been impaired, 

the carrying value is adjusted by the 

impairment loss, which is recognised as 

an expense in the period that the 

impairment is identified. The impairment 

loss is the difference between the  

carrying amount and the recoverable 

service amount. 

 The estimated useful life, residual values 

and amortisation method are reviewed 

annually at the end of the financial year. 

Any adjustments arising from the annual 

review are applied prospectively as a 

Change in Accounting Estimate in the 

Statement of Financial Performance.

4.3 Derecognition

 Intangible Assets are derecognised when 

the asset is disposed of or when there are 

no further economic benefits or service 

potential expected from the use of the 

asset. The gain or loss arising on the 

disposal or retirement of an Intangible 

Asset is determined as the difference 

between the proceeds of disposal and 

the carrying value and is recognised in 

the Statement of Financial Performance.

5. HERITAGE ASSETS

 A Heritage Asset is defined as an asset 

that has a cultural, environmental, 

historical, natural, scientific, technological 

or artistic significance, and is held and 

preserved indefinitely for the benefit of 

present and future generations. 

 Heritage Assets are not depreciated 

owing to uncertainty regarding to their 

estimated useful lives. The entity assess 

at each reporting date if there is an 

indication of impairment. 

5.1 Initial Recognition

 The cost of an item of Heritage Assets is 

recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is 

probable that future economic benefits 

or service potential associated with the 

item will flow to the entity, and if the  

cost or fair value of the item can be 

measured reliably. 

 Heritage Assets are initially recognised at 

cost on its acquisition date or in the case 

of assets acquired by grant or donation, 

deemed cost, being the fair value of the 

asset on initial recognition. The cost of an 

item of Heritage Assets is the purchase 

price and other costs attributable to 

bring the asset to the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable 

of operating in the manner intended by 

the entity. Trade discounts and rebates 

are deducted in arriving at the cost. The 

cost also includes the necessary costs of 

dismantling and removing the asset and 

restoring the site on which it is located.

 Where an asset is acquired by the entity 
for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a 
non-exchange transaction), the cost is 
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deemed to be equal to the fair value of 

that asset on the date acquired. 

 The cost of an item of Heritage Assets 

acquired in exchange for a non-monetary 

asset or monetary asset, or a combination 

of monetary and non-monetary assets, is 

measured at the fair value of the asset 

given up, unless the fair value of the asset 

received is more clearly evident. If the 

acquired item could not be measured at 

its fair value, its cost is measured at the 

carrying amount of the asset given up.

5.2 Subsequent Measurement

 Subsequent expenditure relating to 

Heritage Assets is capitalised if it is 

probable that future economic benefits 

or potential service delivery associated 

with the subsequent expenditure will 

flow to the entity and the cost or fair 

value of the subsequent expenditure can 

be reliably measured. Subsequent 

expenditure incurred on an asset is only 

capitalised when it increases the capacity 

or future economic benefits associated 

with the asset. Where the entity replaces 

parts of an asset, it derecognises the part 

of the asset being replaced and capitalises 

the new component. 

 Subsequently all Heritage Assets are 

measured at cost, less accumulated 

impairment losses. 

5.3 Derecognition

 The carrying amount of an item of 

Heritage Assets is derecognised on 

disposal, or when no future economic 

benefits or service potential are expected 

from its use or disposal. The gain or loss 

arising from the derecognition of an item 

of Heritage Assets is included in surplus 

or deficit when the item is derecognised. 

Gains are not classified as revenue. Gains 

or losses are calculated as the difference 
between the carrying value of assets 
(cost less accumulated impairment 
losses) and the disposal proceeds is 
included in the Statement of Financial 
Performance as a gain or loss on disposal 
of Heritage Assets. 

6. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

 The entity classifies all assets held with 

the primary objective of generating a 

commercial return as Cash Generating 

Assets. All other assets are classified as 

Non-cash Generating Assets. 

6.1 Impairment of Cash Generating 
Assets

 The entity assesses at each reporting 

date whether there is any indication that 

an asset may be impaired. 

 If there is any indication that an asset 

may be impaired, the recoverable amount 

is estimated for the individual asset. If  

it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount of the individual 

asset, the recoverable amount of the cash 

generating unit to which the asset 

belongs is determined. 

 The recoverable amount of an asset or a 

cash generating unit is the higher of its 

fair value less costs to sell and its value in 

use. The best evidence of fair value less 

cost to sell is the price in a binding sale 

agreement in an arm’s length transaction, 

adjusted for the incremental cost that 

would be directly attributable to the 

disposal of the asset. 

 Value in use of a cash-generating asset is 

the present value of the estimated future 

cash flows expected to be derived from 

the continuing use of an asset and from 

its disposal at the end of its useful life.
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 If the recoverable amount of an asset is 
less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an 
impairment loss. 

 An impairment loss of assets carried at 
cost less any accumulated depreciation 
or amortisation is recognised immediately 
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

 An impairment loss is recognised for cash 
generating units if the recoverable 
amount of the unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the unit. The impairment loss 
is allocated to reduce the carrying 
amount of the assets of the unit pro rata 
on the basis of the carrying amount of 
each asset in the unit. 

 The entity assesses at each reporting 
date whether there is any indication that 
an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for assets may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amounts 
of those assets are estimated. 

 The increased carrying amount of an 
asset attributable to a reversal of an 
impairment loss does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior periods.

 A reversal of an impairment loss of  
assets carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation or amortisation is recog-
nised immediately in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. 

6.2 Impairment of Non-cash Generating 
Assets

 The entity assesses at each reporting 
date whether there is any indication that 
an asset may be impaired. 

 If there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired, the recoverable service 

amount is estimated for the individual 

asset. If it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable service amount of the 

individual asset, the recoverable service 

amount of the non-cash generating unit 

to which the asset belongs is determined.

 The recoverable service amount of a non-

cash generating asset is the higher of its 

fair value less costs to sell and its value in 

use. The value in use for a non- cash 

generating asset is the present value of 

the asset’s remaining service potential.

 Fair value less costs to sell is the amount 

obtainable from the sale of an asset in an 

arm’s length transaction between 

knowledgeable, willing parties, less the 

costs of disposal. 

 If the recoverable service amount of an 

asset is less than its carrying amount, the 

carrying amount of the asset is reduced 

to its recoverable service amount. That 

reduction is an impairment loss. 

 An impairment loss of assets carried at 

cost less any accumulated depreciation 

or amortisation is recognised immediately 

in the Statement of Financial Performance.

 An impairment loss is recognised for non-

cash generating units if the recoverable 

service amount of the unit is less than the 

carrying amount of the unit. The 

impairment loss is allocated to reduce 

the carrying amount of the assets of the 

unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying 

amount of each asset in the unit. 

 The entity assesses at each reporting 

date whether there is any indication that 

an impairment loss recognised in prior 

periods for assets may no longer exist or 

may have decreased. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable service 

amounts of those assets are estimated.
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 The increased carrying amount of an 
asset attributable to a reversal of an 
impairment loss does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior periods.

 A reversal of an impairment loss of assets 
carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation or amortisation is recog-
nised immediately in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. 

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 The entity has various types of Financial 
Instruments and these can be broadly 
categorised as Financial Assets, Financial 
Liabilities or Residual Interests in 
accordance with the substance of the 
contractual agreement. The entity only 
recognises a Financial Instrument when it 
becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 

 Initial Recognition

 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
are recognised on the entity’s Statement 
of Financial Position when it becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

 The entity does not offset a Financial 
Asset and a Financial Liability unless a 
legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts currently exist and 
the entity intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 

 Fair Value Methods and 
Assumptions

 The fair values of Financial Instruments 
are determined as follows: 

• The fair values of quoted investments 
are based on current bid prices.

• If the market for a Financial Asset is 

not active (and for unlisted securities), 

the entity establishes fair value by 

using valuation techniques. These 

include the use of recent arm’s  

length transactions, reference to 

other instruments that are sub-

stantially the same, discounted cash 

flow analysis, and option pricing 

models making maximum use of 

market inputs and relying as little as 

possible on entity-specific inputs. 

 The Effective Interest Rate Method

 The Effective Interest Method is a method 

of calculating the amortised cost of a 

Financial Asset or a Financial Liability 

and of allocating the interest income or 

interest expense over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments or receipts through the 

expected life of the Financial Instrument 

or, when appropriate, a shorter period to 

the net carrying amount of the Financial 

Asset or Financial Liability. 

 Amortised Cost

 Amortised Cost is the amount at which 

the Financial Asset or Financial Liability 

is measured at initial recognition minus 

principal repayments, plus or minus the 

cumulative amortisation, using the 

Effective Interest Rate Method of any 

difference between that initial amount 

and the maturity amount, and minus  

any reduction for impairment or 

uncollectability. 

7.1 Financial Assets – Classification

 A Financial Asset is any asset that is a 

cash, a contractual right to receive cash 

or another financial asset from another 

entity. 
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 In accordance with GRAP 104 the 

Financial Assets of the entity are classified 

as follows into the three categories 

allowed by this standard: 

• Financial Assets measured at 
Amortised Cost are non-derivative 

Financial Assets with fixed or 

determinable payments that are not 

quoted in an active market. They are 

included in Current Assets, except for 

maturities greater than 12 months, 

which are classified as Non-current 

Assets. Financial Assets at Amortised 

Cost are initially recognised at fair 

value plus transaction costs that  

are directly attributable to the 

acquisition or issue of the Financial 

Asset. After initial recognition, 

Financial Assets are measured at 

amortised cost, using the Effective 

Interest Rate Method less a provision 

for impairment. 

• Financial Assets measured at Fair 
Value are financial assets that meet 

either of the following conditions:

(i) Derivatives;

(ii) Combined instruments that are 

designated at fair value;

(iii) Instruments held for trading;

(iv) Non-derivative Financial Instruments 

with fixed or determinable payments 

that are designated at fair value at 

initial recognition;or

(v) Financial Instruments that do not 

meet the definition of Financial 

Instruments at Amortised Cost or 

Financial Instruments at Cost.

• Financial Assets measured at Cost 
are investments in residual Interest 

that do not have a quoted market 

price in an active market and  

whose fair value cannot be reliably 

measured. 

 The entity has the following types of 

Financial Assets as reflected on the face 

of the Statement of Financial Position or 

in the Notes thereto: 

Type of Financial 
Asset

Classification in  
terms of GRAP 104

Receivables from  
Exchange Transac-
tions

Financial Assets at  
Amortised Cost

Bank, Cash and Cash 
Equivalents – Call  
Deposits

Financial Assets at  
Amortised Cost

Bank, Cash and Cash 
Equivalents – Bank

Financial Assets at  
Amortised Cost

Bank, Cash and Cash 
Equivalents – Cash

Financial Assets at  
Fair Value

 Cash includes cash-on-hand (including 

petty cash) and cash with banks 

(including call deposits). Cash Equivalents 

are short-term highly liquid investments, 

readily convertible into known amounts 

of cash, which are held with registered 

banking institutions with maturities of 

three months or less and are subject to 

an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purposes of the Cash Flow 

Statement, Cash and Cash Equivalents 

comprise cash-on-hand and deposits 

held on call with banks, net of bank 

overdrafts. The entity categorises Cash 

and Cash Equivalents as Financial Assets 

at Amortised Cost. 

7.2 Financial Liabilities – Classification

 A Financial Liability is a contractual 

obligation to deliver cash or another 

Financial Assets to another entity. 
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 There are three main categories of 
Financial Liabilities, the classification 
determining how they are measured. 
Financial Liabilities may be measured at:

(i) Financial Liabilities measured at  
Fair Value;

(ii) Financial Liabilities measured at 
Amortised Cost; or

(iii) Financial Liabilities measured  
at Cost.

 The entity has the following types of 
Financial Liabilities as reflected on the 
face of the Statement of Financial 
Position or in the Notes thereto: 

Type of Financial  
Liability

Classification in 
terms of GRAP 104

Payables from Ex-
change Transactions

Financial Liabilities 
at Amortised Cost

 Financial Liabilities that are measured at 
Fair Value are Financial Liabilities that 
are essentially held for trading (i.e. 
purchased with the intention to sell or 
repurchase in the short term; derivatives 
other than hedging instruments or are 
part of a portfolio of Financial Instruments 
where there is recent actual evidence of 
short-term profiteering or are derivatives).

7.3 Initial and Subsequent Measurement

7.3.1 Financial Assets:

 Financial Assets measured at Amortised 
Cost 

 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost are 
initially measured at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
the Financial Asset. Subsequently, these 
assets are measured at amortised cost 
using the Effective Interest Method less 
any impairment, with interest recognised 
on an Effective Yield Basis . 

 Trade and Other Receivables that are not 
quoted in an active market are classified 
as Financial Assets at Amortised Cost. 

 Financial Assets measured at Fair Value

 Financial Assets at Fair Value are initially 
measured at fair value, excluding directly 
attributable transaction costs. They are 
subsequently measured at fair value  
with unrealised gains or losses recog-
nised directly in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. 

7.3.2 Financial Liabilities:

 Financial Liabilities measured at Fair 
Value 

 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value are 
stated at fair value, with any resulted  
gain or loss recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Performance. 

 Financial Liabilities held at Amortised 
Cost 

 Any other Financial Liabilities are 
classified as Other Financial Liabilities 
(All Payables are classified as Other 
Liabilities) and are initially measured at 
fair value, net of transaction costs. Trade 
and Other Payables are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate Method. 

 Interest expense is recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Performance by 
applying the effective interest rate. 

7.4 Impairment of Financial Assets

 Financial Assets, other than those at fair 
value, are assessed for indicators of 
impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. Financial Assets are impaired 
where there is objective evidence of 
impairment of Financial Assets (such as 
the probability of insolvency or significant 
financial difficulties of the debtor). If 
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there is such evidence the recoverable 

amount is estimated and an impairment 

loss is recognised in accordance with 

GRAP 104. 

7.4.1 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

 Accounts Receivable encompass Long-

term Debtors, Receivables from Exchange 

Transactions (Consumer Debtors) and 

Receivables from Non-exchange 

Transactions (Other Debtors). 

 Initially Accounts Receivable are valued 

at fair value excluding transaction costs, 

and subsequently carried at amortised 

cost using the Effective Interest Rate 

Method . An estimate is made for doubtful 

debt based on past default experience  

of all outstanding amounts at year-end. 

Bad debts are written off the year in 

which they are identified as irrecoverable. 

Amounts receivable within 12 months 

from the date of reporting are classified 

as current. 

 A provision for impairment of accounts 

receivables is established when there is 

objective evidence that the entity will not 

be able to collect all amounts due 

according to the original terms of 

receivables. The provision is made in 

accordance with GRAP 104 whereby the 

recoverability of accounts receivable is 

assessed individually and then collect-

ively after grouping the assets in financial 

assets with similar credit risk char-

acteristics. The amount of the provision is 

the difference between the Financial 

Asset’s carrying amount and the present 

value of estimated future cash flows, 

discounted at the original effective 

interest rate. future cash flows in a group 

of financial assets that are collectively 

evaluated for impairment are estimated 

on the basis of historical loss experience 

for assets with credit risk characteristics 
similar to those in the group. Cash flows 
relating to short-term receivables are not 
discounted where the effect of 
discounting is immaterial. 

 Government accounts are not provided 
for as such accounts are regarded as 
receivable. 

 The carrying amount of the Financial 
Asset is reduced by the impairment loss 
directly for all Financial Assets carried at 
Amortised Cost with the exception of 
Consumer Debtors, where the carrying 
amount is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account. When a Consumer 
Debtor is considered uncollectible, it is 
written off against the allowance account. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited against 
revenue. Changes in the carrying amount 
of the allowance account are recognised 
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

7.4.2 Financial Assets at Cost

 If there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss has been incurred on an 
investment in a Residual Interest that is 
not measured at fair value because its fair 
value cannot be measured reliably, the 
amount of the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the Financial Asset 
and the present value of estimated  
future cash flows discounted at the 
current market rate of return for a similar 
financial asset. Such impairment losses 
shall not be reversed. 

7.4.3 Derecognition of Financial Assets

 The entity derecognises Financial Assets 
only when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the Financial Asset and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
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ownership of the asset to another entity, 
except when the Board approves the 
write-off of Financial Assets due to  
non-recoverability. 

 If the entity neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership and continues to control the 
transferred asset, the entity recognises 
its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may 
have to pay. If the entity retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a transferred Financial 
Asset, the entity continues to recognise 
the Financial Asset and also recognises  
a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received. 

7.5 Derecognition of Financial 
Liabilities

 The entity derecognises Financial 
Liabilities when, and only when, the 
entity’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or they expire. 

 The entity recognises the difference 
between the carrying amount of the 
Financial Liability (or part of a Financial 
Liability) extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred 
or liabilities assumed, in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. 

7.6 Derecognition of Financial 
Liabilities

 The entity derecognises Financial 
Liabilities when, and only when, the 
entity’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or they expire. 

 The entity recognises the difference 
between the carrying amount of the 
Financial Liability (or part of a Financial 
Liability) extinguished or transferred to 

another party and the consideration paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred 
or liabilities assumed, in the Statement  
of Financial Performance. 

8. REVENUE RECOGNITION

8.1 General

 Revenue is derived from a variety of 
sources which include ticket sales, rental 
of facilities and revenue from trading 
activities and other services provided. 

 Revenue comprises the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable for 
the sale of goods and services in the 
ordinary course of the entity’s activities. 
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, 
returns, rebates and discounts. 

 The entity recognises revenue when the 
amount of revenue can be reliably 
measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential 
will flow to the entity and when specific 
criteria have been met for each of the 
entity’s activities as described below, 
except when specifically stated otherwise. 
The amount of revenue is not considered 
to be reliably measurable until all 
contingencies relating to the sale have 
been resolved. The entity bases its 
estimates on historical results, taking into 
consideration the type of customer, the 
type of transaction and the specifics of 
each arrangement. Furthermore, services 
rendered are recognised by reference to 
the stage of completion of the transaction 
at the reporting date. 

 Revenue from Exchange Transactions 
refers to revenue that accrued to the 
entity directly in return for services 
rendered / goods sold, the value of  
which approximates the consideration 
received or receivable. 
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 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

refers to transactions where the entity 

received revenue from another entity 

without directly giving approximately 

equal value in exchange. Revenue from 

non-exchange transactions is generally 

recognised to the extent that the related 

receipt or receivable qualifies for 

recognition as an asset and there is no 

liability to repay the amount. 

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of 

the consideration received or receivable. 

Revenue is reduced for estimated 

customer returns, stock rotation, price 

protection, rebates and other similar 

allowances. 

8.2 Revenue from Exchange 
Transactions

8.2.1 Sale of Goods

 Revenue from the sale of goods is 

recognised when all the following 

conditions have been met: 

(a) The entity has transferred to the 

buyer the significant risks and 

rewards of ownership of the goods;

(b) The entity retains neither continuing 

managerial involvement to the 

degree usually associated with 

ownership nor effective control over 

the goods sold;

(c) The amount of revenue can be 

measured reliably;

(d) It is probable that the economic 

benefits or service potential 

associated with the transaction will 

flow to the entity; and

(e) The costs incurred or to be incurred 

in respect of the transaction can be 

measured reliably.

8.2.2 Interest Earned

 Interest earned on investments is 

recognised in the Statement of Financial 

Performance on the time-proportionate 

basis that takes into account the effective 

yield on the investment. 

8.2.3 Rentals Received

 Revenue from the rental of facilities and 

equipment is recognised on a straight-

line basis over the term of the lease 

agreement. 

8.2.4 Revenue from Ticket Sales

 Revenue from ticket sales is recognised 

at the point of sale. The revenue from 

ticket sales received but not yet utilised 

at year-end is disclosed under payables 

from exchange transactions in the 

Statement of Financial Position. 

8.3 Revenue from Non-exchange 
Transactions

 An inflow of resources from a non-

exchange transaction, that meets the 

definition of an asset shall be recognised 

as an asset when it is probable that the 

future economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the asset will 

flow to the entity and the fair value of the 

asset can be measured reliably. The asset 

shall be recognised as revenue, except to 

the extent that a liability is also recognised 

in respect of the same inflow. 

 A present obligation arising from a non-

exchange transaction that meets the 

definition of a liability will be recognised 

as a liability when it is probable that an 

outflow of economic benefit will be 

required to settle the obligation and a 

reliable estimate of the amount can  

be made. 
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8.3.1 Public Contributions

 Donations and funding are recognised as 

revenue to the extent that the entity has 

complied with any of the criteria, 

conditions or obligations embodied in 

the agreement. Where the agreement 

contains a stipulation to return the asset, 

other future economic benefits or service 

potential, in the event of non- compliance 

to these stipulations and would be 

enforced by the transferor, a liability is 

recognised to the extent that the criteria, 

conditions or obligations have not been 

met. Where such requirements are not 

enforceable, or where past experience 

has indicated that the transferor has 

never enforced the requirement to return 

the transferred asset, other future 

economic benefits or service potential 

when breaches have occurred, the 

stipulation will be considered a restriction 

and is recognised as revenue. 

 Revenue from public contributions is 

recognised when all conditions associated 

with the contribution have been met or 

where the contribution is to finance 

property, plant and equipment, when 

such items of property, plant and 

equipment are brought into use. 

 Assets acquired from non-exchange 

transactions are measured at fair value in 

accordance with the Standards of GRAP.

8.3.2 Revenue from Recovery of 
Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and 
Wasteful Expenditure

 Revenue from the recovery of 

unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure is based on 

legislated procedures, including those 

set out in the Public Finance Management 

Act (Act No 1 of 1999) and is recognised 

when the recovery thereof from the 

responsible board members or officials  

is virtually certain. 

9. PROVISIONS

 Provisions are recognised when the entity 

has a present or constructive obligation 

as a result of past events, it is probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits or service potential 

will be required to settle the obligation 

and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the obligation. 

 The best estimate of the expenditure 

required to settle the present obligation 

is the amount that the entity would 

rationally pay to settle the obligation at 

the reporting date or to transfer it to a 

third party at that time and are determined 

by the judgment of the management of 

the entity, supplemented by experience 

of similar transactions and, in some cases, 

reports from independent experts. The 

evidence considered includes any 

additional evidence provided by events 

after the reporting date. Uncertainties 

surrounding the amount to be recognised 

as a provision are dealt with by various 

means according to the circumstances. 

Where the provision being measured 

involves a large population of items, the 

obligation is estimated by weighting  

all possible outcomes by their associated 

probabilities. 

 Provisions are reviewed at reporting date 

and the amount of a provision is the 

present value of the expenditure expected 

to be required to settle the obligation. 

When the effect of discounting is material, 

provisions are determined by discounting 

the expected future cash flows that 

reflect current market assessments of  
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the time value of money. The impact  

of the periodic unwinding of the  

discount is recognised in the Statement 

of Financial Performance as a finance 

cost as it occurs. 

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  
LIABILITIES

10.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

 Remuneration to employees is recognised 

in the Statement of Financial Performance 

as the services are rendered, except for 

non-accumulating benefits which are 

only recognised when the specific event 

occurs. 

 The entity has opted to treat its provision 

for leave pay as a provision. 

 The costs of all short-term employee 

benefits such as leave pay, are recognised 

during the period in which the employee 

renders the related service. The liability 

for leave pay is based on the total accrued 

leave days at year end and is shown as a 

creditor in the Statement of Financial 

Position. The entity recognises the 

expected cost of performance bonuses 

only when the entity has a present legal 

or constructive obligation to make such 

payment and a reliable estimate can  

be made. 

11. UNAUTHORISED  
EXPENDITURE

 Unauthorised Expenditure is expenditure 

that has not been budgeted for, 

expenditure that is not in terms of the 

conditions of an allocation received from 

another sphere of government, entity or 

organ of state, and expenditure in the 

form of a grant that is not permitted in 

terms of the Public Finance Management 

Act (Act No. 1 of 1999). All expenditure 

relating to Unauthorised Expenditure is 

accounted for as an expense in the 

Statement of Financial Performance in 

the year that the expenditure was 

incurred. The expenditure is classified in 

accordance with the nature of the 

expense, and where recovered, it is 

subsequently accounted for as revenue in 

the Statement of Financial Performance.

12. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

 Irregular Expenditure is expenditure that 

is contrary to the Public Finance 

Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999) or is 

in contravention of the entity’s Supply 

Chain Management Policies. Irregular 

Expenditure excludes Unauthorised 

Expenditure. Irregular Expenditure is 

accounted for as an expense in the 

Statement of Financial Performance in 

the period it occurred and where 

recovered, it is subsequently accounted 

for as revenue in the Statement of 

Financial Performance. 

13. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL 
EXPENDITURE

 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure is 

expenditure that was made in vain and 

would have been avoided had reasonable 

care been exercised. All expenditure 

relating to Fruitless and wasteful expen-

diture is accounted for as expen diture in 

the Statement of Financial Performance 

in the year that the expen diture was 

incurred. The expen diture is classified in 

accordance with the nature of the 

expense, and where recovered, it is sub-

sequently accounted for as revenue in 

the Statement of Financial Performance.
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14. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND 
ERRORS

 Changes in Accounting Policies that are 
affected by management have been 
applied retrospectively in accordance 
with GRAP 3 requirements, except to the 
extent that it is impractical to determine 
the period-specific effects or the 
cumulative effect of the change in policy. 
In such cases the entity restated the 
opening balances of assets, liabilities and 
net assets for the earliest period for which 
retrospective restatement is practical. 
Details of Changes in Accounting Policies 
are disclosed in the Notes to the Annual 
Financial Statements where applicable.

 Changes in Accounting Estimates are 
applied prospectively in accordance with 
GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes 
in estimates are disclosed in the Notes  
to the Annual Financial Statements  
where applicable. 

 Correction of Errors is applied retro-
spectively in the period in which the error 
has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3 
requirements, except to the extent that it 
is impractical to determine the period-
specific effects or the cumulative effect 
of the error. In such cases the entity shall 
restate the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and net assets for the earliest 
period for which retrospective 
restatement is practical. Details of 
Correction of Errors are disclosed in the 
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
where applicable. 

15. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 Contingent Liabilities represent a possible 
obligation that arises from past events 

and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by an occurrence or non- occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the entity. 
A contingent liability can also arise as a 
result of a present obligation that arises 
from past events but which is not 
recognised as a liability either because it 
is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability. 

 Contingent Assets represent possible 
assets that arise from past events and 
whose existence will be confirmed only 
by an occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the entity.

 Contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities are not recognised. Contin-
gencies are disclosed in notes to the 
annual financial statements. 

16. RELATED PARTIES

 Individuals as well as their close family 
members, and/or entities are related 
parties if one party has the ability, directly 
or indirectly, to control or jointly control 
the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making 
financial and/or operating decisions. 
Management is regarded as a related 
party and comprises the Chairman, Board 
Members, Executive Committee 
Members, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer and all other managers 
reporting directly to the Chief Executive 
Officer or as designated by the Chief 
Executive Officer. 

 The entity operates in an economic sector 
currently dominated by entities directly 
or indirectly owned by the South African 
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Government. As a consequence of the 
constitutional independence of the three 
spheres of government in South Africa, 
only entities in the National sphere of 
government are considered to be related.

17. EVENTS AFTER THE  
REPORTING DATE

 Events after the reporting date that are 

classified as adjusting events have been 

accounted for in the annual financial 

statements. The events after the reporting 

date that are classified as non-adjusting 

events after the reporting date have  

been disclosed in notes to the annual 

financial statements. 

18. COMPARATIVE  
INFORMATION

18.1 Current Year Comparatives

 In accordance with GRAP 1 Budgeted 

Amounts have been provided and forms 

part of the Annual Financial Statements.

18.2 Prior Year Comparatives

 When the presentation or classification 

of items in the Annual Financial 

Statements is amended, prior period 

comparative amounts are reclassified. 

The nature and reason for the 

reclassification is disclosed. 

18.3 Budget Information

 The annual budget figures have been 

prepared in accordance with the GRAP 

standard and are consistent with the 

Accounting Policies adopted by the 

Board for the preparation of these Annual 

Financial Statements. The amounts are 

scheduled as a separate additional 

financial statement, called the Statement 

of Comparison of Budget and Actual 

amounts. Explanatory comment is 

provided in the statement giving reasons 

for overall growth or decline in the budget 

and motivations for over- or under 

spending on line items. These figures  

are those approved by the Board. The 

budget is approved on an accrual basis 

by nature classification. 

 The approved budget covers the period 

from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

 The Castle Control Board (the entity) is a service-orientated public entity in Cape Town, 

Western Cape Province, established by the Castle Management Act (Act No. 207 of 1993). 

The addresses of its registered office and principal place of business are disclosed under 

“General Information” included in the Annual Financial Statements. The principal activities of 

the entity is to optimise the Castle of Good Hope’s tourism potential and its accessibility to 

public and to preserve and protect its cultural and military heritage. The Board of the entity 

acts as the accounting authority in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). 

2. INVENTORIES
Consumable Stores 2 622 6 799

Total Inventories 2 622 6 799

3. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2019

Gross  
Balances  

R

Provision for 
Impairment  

R

Net  
Balances  

R

Trade Debtors 166 912 149 375 17 537

Payments Made-in-Advance 2 660 - 2 660

Total Receivables from Exchange Transactions 169 573 149 375 20 198

As at 31 March 2018

Trade Debtors 205 308 50 000 155 308

Payments Made-in-Advance 17 217 - 17 217

Total Receivables from Exchange Transactions 222 524 50 000 172 524

Receivables from Exchange Transactions are 
billed monthly, latest end of month.

The entity did not pledge any of its Receivables 
as security for borrowing purposes.
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3.1 Ageing of Receivables from Exchange Transactions

As at 31 March 2019

Current Past Due Total

0 - 30 
days

31 - 60 
Days

61 - 90 
Days

+ 90  
Days

Trade Debtors:

Gross Balances 45 163 5 870 2 375 113 504 166 912

Less: Provision for Impairment 32 250 5 625 111 500 149 375

Net Balances 12 913 245 2 375 2 004 17 537

Payments Made-in-Advance:

Gross Balances 2 660 - - - 2 660

Net Balances 2 660 - - - 2 660

As at 31 March Receivables of R4 624 were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these  
Receivables are as follows:

Past Due Total

31 - 60 
Days

61 - 90 
Days

+ 90  
Days

All Receivables:

Gross Balances 5 870 2 375 113 504 121 749

Net Balances 245 2 375 2 004 4 624

As at 31 March 2018

Current Past Due Total

0 - 30 
days

31 - 60 
Days

61 - 90 
Days

+ 90  
Days

Trade Debtors:

Gross Balances 34 148 28 000 - 11 455 273 604

Less: Provision for Impairment - - - - -

Net Balances 34 148 28 000 - 11 455 73 604

Payments Made-in-Advance:

Gross Balances 17 217 - - - 17 217

Net Balances 17 217 - - - 17 217

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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As at 31 March Receivables of R39,455 were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these  
Receivables are as follows

Past Due Total

31 - 60 
Days

61 - 90 
Days

+ 90  
Days

All Receivables:

Gross Balances 28 000 - 11 455 39 455

Net Balances 28 000 - 11 455 39 455

3.2 Reconciliation of the Provision for Impairment

2019
R

2018
R

Impairment Losses recognised 149 375 270 000

Amounts written off as uncollectable - (220 000)

Balance at end of year 149 375 50 000

Provision for impairment of Receivables has been made based on the  
collectability of the amounts outstanding. No further credit provision  
is required in excess of the provision for impairment.

3.3 Derecognition of Financial Assets

No Financial Assets have been transferred to other parties during the year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current Investments 513 699 627

Bank Accounts 109 533 88 924

Cash on Hand 30 074 92 469

Total Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents 140 120 881 020

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash 
Equivalents include Cash-on-Hand, Cash in Banks and Investments in Money Market Instruments

4.1 Current Investment Deposits

2019
R

2018
R

Call Deposits 513 699 627

Balance at end of year 513 699 627

Deposits attributable to Creditors 513 647 841

Deposits attributable to Current Provisions - 51 786

Deposits available for Operations - -

Total Deposits attributable to Commitments of the Entity 513 699 627

4.2 Bank Accounts

2019
R

2018
R

Cash in Bank 109 533 88 924

Total Bank Accounts 109 533 88 924

The Entity has the following bank accounts

Primary Bank Account

Absa Bank - Adderley Street Branch, Cape Town 
Account Number 405 158 9289

Cash book balance at beginning of year 88 924 92 394

Cash book balance at end of year 109 533 88 924

The entity does not have any overdrawn current account facilities with its  
banker and therefore does not incur interest on overdrawn current accounts. 
Interest is earned at different rates per annum on favourable balances.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

4.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Floats and Advances 15 600 67 600

Other Cash Equivalents 14 474 24 869

Total Cash on hand in Cash Floats, Advances and Equivalents 30 074 92 469

The entity did not pledge any of its Cash and Cash Equivalents as collateral  
for its financial liabilities. 

No restrictions have been imposed on the entity  
in terms of the utilisation of its Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Boxing tournament, December 2018.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
31 March 2019
Reconciliation of Carrying Value

Description

Information
Technology
Equipment

Office
Equipment Total

R R R

Carrying values at 01 April 2018 309 918 90 241 400 159

Cost 487 347 227 614 714 961

Accumulated Depreciation: (177 429) (137 373) (314 802)

Acquisitions 1 968 992 926 390 2 895 382

Depreciation: (159 009) (32 378) (191 387)

Carrying value of Disposals: (7 261) (7 267) (14 528)

Cost (22 925) (16 203) (39 128)

Accumulated Depreciation 15 664 8 936 24 600

Carrying values at 31 March 2019 2 112 640 976 987 3 089 626

Cost 2 433 414 1 137 801 3 571 215

Accumulated Depreciation: (320 774) (160 815) (481 589)

31 March 2018
Reconciliation of Carrying Value

Description

Information
Technology
Equipment

Office
Equipment Total

R R R

Carrying values at 01 April 2017 214 806 107 724 322 531

Cost 433 094 277 433 710 528

Accumulated Depreciation: (218 288) (169 709) (387 997)

Acquisitions 168 013 1 500 169 513

Depreciation: (72 880) (15 835) (88 715)

Carrying value of Disposals: (22) (3 148) (3 170)

Cost (113 761) (51 319) (165 080)

Accumulated Depreciation 113 739 48 171 161 911

Carrying values at 31 March 2018 309 918 90 241 400 159

Cost 487 347 227 614 714 961

Accumulated Depreciation: (177 429) (137 373) (314 802)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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5.1 Gross Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment that is fully depreciated and 
still in use

 Included in Property, Plant and Equipment are assets that are fully depreciated but still  

in use. These items are not material to the operations of the entity. They are also not 

quantitatively material. 

5.2 Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment retired from active use and not 
classified as a Discontinued Operation.

 No Property, Plant and Equipment were retired from active use and not classified as a 

Discontinued Operation during the financial year. 

5.3 Assets pledged as security

 The entity did not pledge any of its assets as security. 

5.4 Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

 No impairment losses have been recognised on Property, Plant and Equipment of the  

entity at the reporting date. 

5.5 Change in Estimate - Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment reviewed

 Management reviewed the useful lives of assets and no changes were made to the estimated 

useful lives of the various assets. 

5.6 Expenditure incurred to Repair and Maintain Property, Plant and Equipment

 The following specific costs included in the amount of Repairs and Maintenance disclosed  

in Note 22 were incurred by entity during the reporting period: 

2019
R

2018
R

Buildings 5 685 30 060

- Inventory Consumed 5 685 30 060

IT Equipment 22 073 70 879

- Inventory Consumed 22 073 70 879

Heritage Asset - 9 627

- Inventory Consumed - 9 627

Total Expenditure incurred to Repair and Maintenance 27 758 110 566

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2019

R
2018

R

At Cost less Accumulated Amortisation and Accumulated  
Impairment Losses

206 931 1

The movement in Intangible Assets is reconciled as follows: 

Computer 
Software

Total

Carrying values at 01 April 2018 1 1

Cost 1 499 1 499

Accumulated Amortisation (1 498) (1 498)

Acquisitions 220 415 220 415

Purchased 220 415 220 415

Amortisation (13 485) (13 485)

Purchased (13 485) (13 485)

Disposals - -

At Cost - -

At Accumulated Amortisation - -

Carrying values at 31 March 2019 206 931 206 931

Cost 221 914 221 914

Accumulated Amortisation (14 983) (14 983)

Carrying values at 01 April 2017 8 414 8 414

Cost 20 580 20 580

Accumulated Amortisation (12 166) (12 166)

Acquisitions - -

Purchased - -

Amortisation (2 511) (2 511)

Purchased (2 511) (2 511)

Disposals: (5 902) (5 902)

At Cost (19 081) (19 081)

At Accumulated Amortisation 13 179 13 179

Carrying values at 31 March 2018 1 1

Cost 1 499 1 499

Accumulated Amortisation (1 498) (1 498)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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 The amortisation expense has been included in the line item “Depreciation and Amortisation” 

in the Statement of Financial Performance (see Note 21). 

 All of the entity’s Intangible Assets are held under freehold interests and no Intangible Assets 

had been pledged as security for any liabilities of the entity. 

 No restrictions apply to any of the Intangible Assets of the entity. 

6.1 Significant Intangible Assets

 Significant Intangible Assets, that did not meet the recognition criteria for Intangible Assets 

as stipulated in GRAP 102 and SIC 32, are the following: 

(i) Website Costs incurred during the past financial years have been expensed and not 

recognised as Intangible Assets. The website is used for promotional purposes and not 

to generate sales. 

6.2 Impairment of Intangible Assets

 No impairment losses have been recognised on Intangible Assets  

of the entity at the reporting date. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

In support of it’s vision of inclusivity, healing and nation-building, the Castle played host 
to more than 50 commercial events over the past financial year.
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7. HERITAGE ASSETS

2019
R

2018
R

At Cost less Accumulated Impairment Losses 1 381 960 1 381 960

The movement in Heritage Assets is reconciled as follows: 

Antiquities Total

Carrying values at 01 April 2018 1 381 960 1 381 960

Cost 1 381 960 1 381 960

Accumulated Impairment - -

Carrying values at 31 March 2019 1 381 960 1 381 960

Cost 1 381 960 1 381 960

Accumulated Impairment Losses - -

Carrying values at 01 April 2017 1 381 960 1 381 960

Cost 1 381 960 1 381 960

Accumulated Amortisation - -

Carrying values at 31 March 2018 1 381 960 1 381 960

Cost 1 381 960 1 381 960

Accumulated Amortisation - -

 All of the entity’s Heritage Assets are held under freehold interests and no Heritage Assets 

had been pledged as security for any liabilities of the entity. 

 No restrictions apply to any of the Heritage Assets of the entity. 

7.1 Significant Heritage Assets not Recognised

 Included in Heritage Assets held by the entity are three shackles, donated to the CCB in  

the 2014/15 financial period, whose fair value could not be determined on initial recognition 

and were hence recognised at R nil value. 

7.2 Impairment of Heritage Assets

 No impairment losses have been recognised on Heritage Assets of the entity at the  

reporting date. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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8. PROVISIONS

2019
R

2018
R

Leave Pay 279 883 262 245

Performance Bonuses 386 553 386 553

Total Provisions 666 436 648 798

The movement in provisions are reconciled as follows:

Current Provisions:

Leave Pay:

Balance at beginning of year 262 245 206 174

Contributions to provision 73 025 76 432

Expenditure incurred (55 387) (20 361)

Balance at end of year 279 883 262 245

Leave Pay is calculated at current salary rate multiplied by number of 
available leave credits. There are uncertainties relating to when employees 
will take leave.

Performance Bonuses:

Balance at beginning of year 386 553 368 935

Contributions to provision - -

Expenditure incurred - -

Balance at end of year 386 553 386 553

Performance Bonuses accrue to staff and have been provided for at a maximum allowable amount 
according to the employment contracts and performance contracts of those individuals who may qualify 
or be considered for a bonus. The actual amount payable cannot be determined until performance 
evaluation processes have been duly completed by the Board. Any bonus that may be or become payable 
would ordinarily be paid within the next 12 months.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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9. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2019
R

2018
R

Trade Creditors 17 428 15 626

Accruals 52 815 305 896

Deposits Received 280 261 285 769

Payments Received-in-Advance 131 784 40 460

Other Creditors 146 216 90

Total Payables 628 504 647 841

The entity did not default on any payment of its Creditors. No terms for 
payment have been re-negotiated by the entity.

10. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

2019
R

2018
R

Military Tattoo Reserve 358 257 358 257

Accumulated Surplus / (Deficit) due to the results of Operations 3 188 261 1 187 568

Total Accumulated Surplus 3 546 518 1 545 825

Refer to Statement of Changes in Net Assets for more detail and the 
movement on Accumulated Surplus.

11. SALES

2019
R

2018
R

Tickets 4 317 912 4 123 521

Total Sales 4 317 912 4 123 521

The amounts disclosed above for revenue from Sales are in respect of 
ticket sales which are recognised at the point of sale according to approved 
tariffs.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019



95

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

12. SPECIAL DAY REVENUE

2019
R

2018
R

Military Tattoo - -

Total Receipts from Special Days - -

The amounts disclosed above for revenue from Special Days are in respect 
of services rendered which are billed to the costomers upon the actual sale 
according to approved tariffs.

13. INTEREST EARNED

2019
R

2018
R

External Investments:

Bank Account - -

Call Deposits 14 019 116 815

Total Interest Earned 14 019 116 815

13.1 Calculation of Cash Flow

External Interest Income 14 019 116 815

Total Receipts for Interest Received 14 019 116 815

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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14. RENTAL OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

Note
2019

R
2018

R

Rental Revenue from Amenities - 200

Rental Revenue from Other Facilities 1 258 365 1 131 702

Total Interest Earned 1 258 365 1 131 702

14.1 Calculation of Cash Flow:

Income from Rental of Facilities and Equipment Note 14 1 258 365 1 131 902

Income from Special Days Note 12 - -

Income from Sales Note 11 4 317 912 4 123 521

Opening Balance of Trade Debtors Note 3 222 524 106 003

Closing Balance of Trade Debtors Note 3 (169 573) (222 524)

Amounts written-off as uncollectable Note 3 (126 495) (220 000)

Total Receipts for Rental of Facilities & Equipment,  
Sales and Other Services

5 502 733 4 918 902

Rental revenue earned on Facilities and Equipment is in respect 
of Non-financial Assets rented out

15. OTHER REVENUE

Note
2019

R
2018

R

Overtime 57 160 53 972

Sundry Income 71 723 396 165

Total Other Revenue 128 883 450 137

15.1 Calculation of Cash Flow

Income from Other Revenue Note 15 128 883 450 137

Other Non-Cash Movement - -

Total Receipts for Other Revenue 128 883 450 137

The amounts disclosed above for Other Revenue are in respect 
of services rendered which are billed to or paid for by the users 
as the services are required according to approved tariffs.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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16. PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

2019
R

2018
R

Other Donations 3 342 445 270 700

Total Public Contributions and Donations 3 342 445 270 700

16.1 Calculation of Cash Flow:

Public Contributions and Donations Income 3 342 445 270 700

Less: Non-Cash Donations of Assets (3 341 645) (270 000)

Total Receipts for Public Contributions and Donations 800 700

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

A rainbow embraces the statues of the four warrior kings in front of the Puij.  
This collection of statues is now the most popular attraction at the Castle.
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17. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

2019
R

2018
R

Employee Related Costs - Salaries and Wages 4 901 388 5 796 662

Basic Salaries and Wages 4 901 388 5 796 662

Contribution to Leave Fund - -

Performance Bonuses - -

Total Employee Related Costs 4 901 388 5 796 662

17.1 Calculation of Cash Flow:

Employee Related Costs Expenditure 4 901 388 5 796 662

Opening Balance of Provision for Leave Pay 262 245 206 174

Closing Balance of Provision for Leave Pay (279 883) (262 245)

Opening Balance of Provision for Performance Bonuses 386 553 368 935

Closing Balance of Provision for Performance Bonuses (386 553) (386 553)

Other Non-Cash Transfers (163 488) (225 901)

Total Payments for Employee Related Costs 4 720 262 5 497 073

No advances were made to employees.

Remuneration of Key Management:

Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer

Annual Remuneration 1 040 146 985 920

Performance Bonus - 98 592

Total 1 040 146 1 084 512

Remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer

Annual Remuneration 841 775 794 127

Performance Bonus - 79 413

Total 841 775 873 540

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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18. ADMINISTRATION COSTS

2019
R

2018
R

Restaurant Management Fees - 64 000

Total Administration Costs - 64 000

Delicious Deloush were procured by the CCB to provide restaurant services 
and were paid a monthly management fee. These services were terminated 
in 2017/18 and a new service provider was appointed on a profit share basis

19. CONTRACTED SERVICES

2019
R

2018
R

Cleaning Services - 9 550

Consultancy Fees 122 291 40 359

Internal Audit 110 223 137 951

Security Services 9 606 9 466

Total Contracted Services 242 119 197 326

20. DEBT IMPAIRMENT

2019
R

2018
R

Impairment Losses Recognised: 126 495 270 000

Receivables from Exchange Transactions 126 495 270 000

Total Debt Impairment 126 495 270 000

21. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

2019
R

2018
R

Depreciation: Property, Plant and Equipment 191 387 88 715

Amortisation: Intangible Assets 13 485 2 511

Total Depreciation and Amortisation 204 872 91 226

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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22. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

2019
R

2018
R

Buildings 5 685 30 060

Other Assets - Computer Equipment/Hardware 22 073 70 879

Heritage Assets - 9 627

Total Repairs and Maintenance 27 758 110 566

In terms of the Castle Management Act the Castle Control Board is the 
mandated entity to manage the Castle of Good Hope on behalf of the 
Department of Defence

23. SPECIAL DAY EXPENDITURE

2019
R

2018
R

350 Commemoration - 2 060

Cars at the Castle 1 020 70 579

DMV workshops - 15 750

Heritage Day - 40 000

Mandela Day 396 11 917

Military Tattoo 150 107 -

Woman’s Month/Day - -

Youth Day - 21 149

Other Events - -

Total Expenditure for Special Days 151 523 161 454

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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24. GENERAL EXPENSES

2019
R

2018
R

Included in General Expenses are the following:

Advertising 1 391 29 809

Audit Fees 419 370 396 353

Bank Charges 107 883 85 782

Cleaning Material 48 752 58 677

Computer Requirements 46 652 99 849

Entertainment 24 404 53 284

Insurance 22 530 20 683

Laundry 27 923 24 121

Legal Costs 68 831 177 918

Marketing - -

Military Museum 479 4 363

Office Machine Rental 1 521 2 810

Postage and Courier Costs 863 798

Printing and Stationery Costs 144 877 140 959

Signboards - 1 619

Sanitation Services 7 593 8 391

Subscription and Membership Fees 1 727 10 817

Telecommunication Costs 55 515 117 083

Training and Work sessions 1 540 18 346

Travelling Costs - International - 21 120

Travelling Costs - Local 43 052 120 191

Uniforms and Protective Clothing - 51 846

Venue Rental 309 400 277 356

Other General Expenses 53 724 300 738

Total General Expenses 1 388 027 2 022 910

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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24.1 GENERAL EXPENSES

Note
2019

R
2018

R

Expenditure for Administration Costs Note 18 - 64 000

Expenditure for Contracted Services Note 19 242 119 197 326

Expenditure for Cost of Sales Note N/A 4 177 -

Expenditure for Repairs and Maintenance Note 22 27 758 110 566

Expenditure for Share of Ticket Sales Note N/A - -

Expenditure for Special Days Note 23 151 523 161 454

Expenditure for General Expenses Note 24 1 388 027 2 022 910

Opening Balance of Inventories Note 2 (6 799) -

Closing Balance of Inventories Note 2 2 622 6 799

Opening Balance of Payables: Exchange Transactions Note 9 647 841 899 423

Closing Balance of Payables: Exchange Transactions Note 9 (628 504) (647 841)

Other Non- Cash Movement (325 399) (270 000)

Total for Suppliers Paid 1 503 365 2 544 638

The amounts disclosed above for Other General Expenses are 
in respect of costs incurred in the general management of the 
entity and not directly attributable to a
specific service or class of expense

25. GAINS / LOSSES ON DISPOSAL OF CAPITAL ASSETS

2019
R

2018
R

Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (14 508) (9 072)

Loss on Disposal of Intangible Assets - (5 902)

Total Gains / Losses on Disposal of Capital Assets (14 508) (14 974)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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26. CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS

2019
R

2018
R

Surplus / (Deficit) for the Year 2 000 757 (2 630 141)

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and Amortisation 204 872 91 226

Losses / (Gains) on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 14 508 9 072

Contribution to Provisions - Current 73 025 94 050

Expenditure incurred from Provisions - Current (55 387) (20 361)

Contribution to Impairment Provision 50 000 270 000

Bad Debts Written-off 99 375 (220 000)

Public Contribution and Donation (Assets Donated) (2 881 830) -

Intangible Assets Donated (220 415) -

Operating surplus before working capital changes (715 095) (2 406 155)

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 4 177 (6 799)

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables from Exchange Transactions 52 952 (116 521)

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables from Exchange Transactions (19 337) (251 582)

Other Adjustments (50 045) -

Cash generated by / (utilised in) Operations (727 349) (2 781 057)

27. NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

 The entity did not enter into any Non-cash Investing and Financing Transactions during  

the 2018/19 financial year. 
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28. UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL  
EXPENDITURE DISALLOWED

28.1 Unauthorised Expenditure

 The Board is satisfied that no unauthorised expenditure was incurred during the year under 

review, nor in the previous financial year. 

28.2 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

 The Board is satisfied that no fruitless and wasteful expenditure was incurred during the year 

under review, nor in the previous financial year. 

28.3 Irregular Expenditure

Incident
Disciplinary Steps /  

Criminal Proceedings

2019
R

2018
R

Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure:

Opening balance - 1 724 869

Irregular Expenditure current year - 1 724 869

Condoned or written off by the Board - -

Irregular Expenditure awaiting condonement - (1 724 869)

Total - -

Incident
Disciplinary Steps /  

Criminal Proceedings

Irregular Expenditure Incurred is R0 (2018: R0)
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29.1 Classification

FINANCIAL ASSETS Classification
2019

R
2018

R

In accordance with GRAP 104.13 the Fi-
nancial Assets of the entity are classified 
as follows:

-

Receivables from Exchange Transactions: -

Trade Debtors Amortised cost 17 537 155 308

Payments Made-in-Advance Amortised cost 2 660 17 217

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Call Deposits Amortised cost 513 699 627

Bank Balances Amortised cost 109 533 88 924

Cash Floats and Advances Fair value 15 600 67 600

Other Cash Equivalents Fair value 14 474 24 869

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:

Receivables from Exchange Transactions Trade Debtors 17 537 155 308

Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Payments made 

in Advance
2 660 17 217

Cash and Cash Equivalents Call Deposits 513 699 627

Cash and Cash Equivalents Bank Balances 109 533 88 924

130 244 961 076

Financial Assets and Fair Value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Floats and 

Advances
15 600 67 600

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Cash 
Equivalents

14 474 24 869

30 074 92 469

Total Financial Assets 160 318 1 053 545
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Classification
2019

R
2018

R

In accordance with GRAP 104.13 the  
Financial Liabilities of the entity are  
classified as follows:

-

Payables from Exchange Transactions

Trade Creditors Amortised cost 17 428 15 626

Accruals Amortised cost 52 815 305 896

Deposits Received Amortised cost 280 261 285 769

Payments Received-in-Advance Amortised cost 131 784 40 460

Other Creditors Amortised cost 146 216 90

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:

Payables from Exchange Transactions
Traded  

Creditors
17 428 15 626

Payables from Exchange Transactions Accruals 52 815 305 896

Payables from Exchange Transactions
Deposits  
Received

280 261 285 769

Payables from Exchange Transactions
Payments 

Received in 
Advance

131 784 40 460

Payables from Exchange Transactions Other Creditors 146 216 90

628 504 647 841

Total Financial Liabilities 628 504 647 841

29.2 Fair Value

 The following methods and assumptions 

were used to estimate the Fair Value of 

each class of Financial Instrument for 

which it is practical to estimate such 

value. 

 Cash

 The carrying amount approximates the 

Fair Value because of the short maturity 

of these instruments. 

 Trade and Other Receivables/Payables

 The Fair Value of Trade and Other 

Payables is estimated at the present  

value of future cash flows. 

 The management of the entity is of the 

opinion that the carrying value of Trade 

and Other Receivables recorded at 

amortised cost in the Annual Financial 

Statements approximate their fair  

values. The Fair Value of Trade Receivables 

were determined after considering the 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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standard terms and conditions of 

agreements entered into between the 

entity and other parties as well as  

the current payment ratios of the  

entity’s debtors. 

 Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

 The Fair Value of Other Financial Assets 

and Financial Liabilities (excluding 

Derivative Instruments) is determined in 

accordance with generally accepted 

pricing models based on discounted cash 

flow analysis using prices from observable 

current market transactions and dealer 

quotes for similar instruments. 

 Management considers the carrying 

amounts of Financial Assets and Financial 

Liabilities recorded at amortised cost in 

the Annual Financial Statements to 

approximate their Fair Values on 31 March 

2019, as a result of the short-term 

maturity of these assets and liabilities. 

 No Financial Instruments of the entity 

have been reclassified during the year. 

 Assumptions used in determining Fair 
Value of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities

 The table below analyses Financial 

Instruments carried at Fair Value at the 

end of the reporting period by the level 

of fair-value hierarchy as required by 

GRAP 104. The different levels are based 

on the extent to which quoted prices are 

used in the calculation of the Fair Value 

of the Financial Instruments. The levels 

have been defined as follows: 

 Level 1: Fair Values are based on quoted 

market prices (unadjusted) in active 

markets for an identical instrument. 

 Level 2: Fair Values are calculated using 

valuation techniques based on observable 

inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This 

category includes instruments valued 

using quoted market prices in active 

markets for similar instruments, quoted 

prices for identical or similar instruments 

in markets that are considered less than 

active, or other valuation techniques 

where all significant inputs are directly or 

indirectly observable from market data.

 Level 3: Fair Values are based on 

valuation techniques using significant 

unobservable inputs. This category 

includes all instruments where the 

valuation technique includes inputs not 

based on observable data and the 

unobservable inputs have a significant 

effect on the instrument’s valuation. Also, 

this category includes instruments that 

are valued based on quoted prices for 

similar instruments where significant 

unobservable adjustments or 

assumptions are required to reflect 

differences between the instruments. 
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Level 1
R

Level 2
R

Level 3
R

Total
R

31 March 2019

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Instruments at Fair Value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 30 074 - 30 074

Total Financial Assets - 30 074 - 30 074

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Instruments at Fair Value:

Total Financial Liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Instruments - 30 074 - 30 074

Level 1
R

Level 2
R

Level 3
R

Total
R

31 March 2018

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Instruments at Fair Value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 92 469 - 92 469

Total Financial Assets - 92 469 - 92 469

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Instruments at Fair Value:

Total Financial Liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Instruments - 92 469 - 92 469

29.3 Capital Risk Management

 The entity manages its capital to ensure 

that the entity will be able to continue  

as a going concern while delivering 

sustainable services to consumers through 

the optimisation of the debt and equity 

balance. The entity’s overall strategy 

remains unchanged from 2018.

 The capital structure of the entity consists 

of debt, which includes Cash and Cash 

Equivalents and Equity, comprising Funds, 

Reserves and Accumulated Surplus as 

disclosed in Note 10 and the Statement of 

Changes in Net Assets. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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2019
R

2018
R

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

Debt 1 294 940 1 296 639

Equity 3 546 518 1 545 825

Net Debt to Equity Ratio 36.51% 83.88%

Equity includes all Funds and Reserves of the entity, disclosed 
as Net Assets in the Statement of Financial Performance and 
Net Debt as described above

29.4 Financial Risk Management Objectives

 The Accounting Officer has overall 

responsibility for the establishment and 

oversight of the entity’s risk management 

framework. The entity’s risk management 

policies are established to identify and 

analyse the risks faced by the entity, to 

set appropriate risk limits and controls 

and to monitor risks and adherence to 

limits. 

 Due to the largely non-trading nature of 

activities and the way in which they are 

financed, public entities are not exposed 

to the degree of financial risk faced by 

business entities. Financial Instruments 

play a much more limited role in creating 

or changing risks that would be typical of 

listed companies to which the IAS’s 

mainly apply. Generally, Financial Assets 

and Liabilities are generated by day-to-

day operational activities and are not 

held to manage the risks facing the entity 

in undertaking its activities. 

 The Board monitors and manages the 

financial risks relating to the operations 

through internal policies and procedures. 

These risks include interest rate risk, 

credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance 

with policies and procedures is reviewed 

by the internal auditors on a continuous 

basis, and annually by external auditors. 

The entity does not enter into or trade 

financial instruments for speculative 

purposes. 

 Internal audit, responsible for initiating a 

control framework and monitoring and 

responding to potential risk, reports 

periodically to the entity’s audit 

committee, an independent body that 

monitors the effectiveness of the internal 

audit function. 

 Further quantitative disclosures are 

included throughout these Annual 

Financial Statements. 

29.5 Significant Risks

 It is the policy of the entity to disclose 

information that enables the user of its 

Annual Financial Statements to evaluate 

the nature and extent of risks arising from 

Financial Instruments to which the entity 

is exposed on the reporting date. 

 The entity has exposure to the following 

risks from its operations in Financial 

Instruments: 

- Credit Risk;

- Liquidity Risk; and

- Market Risk.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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Risks and exposures are disclosed as follows:

 Market Risk

 Market Risk is the risk that changes in 

market prices, such as foreign exchange 

rates, interest rates and equity prices will 

affect the entity’s income or the value of 

its holdings in Financial Instruments. The 

objective of market risk management is 

to manage and control market risk 

exposures within acceptable parameters, 

while optimising the return. 

 Credit Risk

 Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to 

the entity if a customer or counterparty 

to a Financial Instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations and arises 

principally from the entity’s receivables 

from customers and investment 

securities. 

 Liquidity Risk

 Liquidity Risk is the risk that the entity 

will encounter difficulty in meeting the 

obligations associated with its Financial 

Liabilities that are settled by delivering 

cash or another financial asset. The 

entity’s approach to managing liquidity  

is to ensure, as far as possible, that it  

will always have sufficient liquidity to 

meet its liabilities when due, under both 

normal and stressed conditions, without 

incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

damage to the entity’s reputation. 

 Liquidity Risk is managed by ensuring 

that all assets are reinvested at maturity 

at competitive interest rates in relation to 

cash flow requirements. Liabilities are 

managed by ensuring that all contractual 

payments are met on a timeous basis 

and, if required, additional new 

arrangements are established at 

competitive rates to ensure that cash 

flow requirements are met. 

 A maturity analysis for Financial Liabilities 

(where applicable) that shows the 

remaining undiscounted contractual 

maturities is disclosed in Note 29.8 to  

the Annual Financial Statements. 

29.6 Market Risk

The entity’s activities expose it primarily to the 

financial risks of changes in interest rates 

(see Note 29.7 below). No formal policy 

exists to hedge volatilities in the interest 

rate market. 

 There has been no change to the entity’s 

exposure to market risks or the manner in 

which it manages and measures the risk.

29.6.1 Foreign Currency Risk 
Management

 The entity’s activities do not 

expose it to the financial risks of 

foreign currency and therefore has 

no formal policy to hedge 

volatilities in the interest rate 

market. 

29.6.2 Interest Rate Risk 
Management

 Interest Rate Risk is defined as the 

risk that the fair value or future 

cash flows associated with a 

financial instrument will fluctuate 

in amount as a result of market 

interest changes. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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 Potential concentrations of interest 

rate risk consist mainly of variable 

rate deposit investments, consumer 

debtors, other debtors, bank and 

cash balances. 

 The entity limits its counterparty 

exposures by only dealing with 

Absa Bank. No investments with a 

tenure exceeding twelve months 

are made. The entity is not exposed 

to credit interest rate risk as the 

entity has no borrowings. 

 The entity’s exposures to interest 

rates on Financial Assets and 

Financial Liabilities are detailed in  

the Credit Risk Management 

section of this note. 

29.7 Credit Risk Management

 Credit Risk refers to the risk that a 

counterparty will default on its contractual 

obligations resulting in financial loss to 

the entity. 

 Potential concentrations of credit rate 

risk consist mainly of variable rate deposit 

investments, consumer debtors, other 

debtors, bank and cash balances. 

 Investments/Bank, Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

 The entity limits its counterparty 

exposures from its investment operations 

(financial assets that are neither past  

due nor impaired) by only dealing with 

Absa Bank. 

 No investments with a tenure exceeding 

twelve months are made. 

 Trade and Other Receivables

 Trade and Other Receivables are amounts 

owed by consumers and are presented 

net of impairment losses. 

 There were no material changes in the 

exposure to credit risk and its objectives, 

policies and processes for managing and 

measuring the risk during the year under 

review. The entity’s maximum exposure 

to credit risk is represented by the 

carrying value of each financial asset in 

the Statement of Financial Position. The 

entity has no significant concentration of 

credit risk, with exposure spread over a 

large number of consumers, and is not 

concentrated in any particular sector or 

geographical area. 

 The entity establishes an allowance for 

impairment that represents its estimate 

of anticipated losses in respect of trade 

and other receivables. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
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2019
R

2018
R

The maximum credit and interest risk exposure in respect of 
the relevant financial instruments is as follows:

Receivables from Exchange Transactions 20 198 172 524

Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents 140 120 881 020

Maximum Credit and Interest Risk Exposure 160 318 1 053 545

Bank and Cash Balances:

ABSA Bank Ltd 109 533 88 924

Call Deposits 513 699 627

Cash Equivalents 30 074 92 469

Total Bank and Cash Balances 140 120 881 020

Credit quality of Financial Assets:

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due 
nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about 
counterparty default rates:

Receivables from Exchange Transactions:

Counterparties without external credit rating:-

Group 1 15 574 51 365

15 574 51 365

Total Receivables from Exchange Transactions 15 574 51 365

Credit quality Groupings:

Group 1 - High certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors are strong and the risk of  
non-payment is small.

Group 2 - Reasonable certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors are sound, although ongoing funding 
needs may enlarge financing requirement. The risk of non-payment is small.

Group 3 - Satisfactory liquidity factors and other factors which qualify the entity as investment 
grade. However, the risk factors of non-payment are larger

None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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29.8 Liquidity Risk Management

 Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk 

management rests with the Board, which 

has built an appropriate liquidity risk 

management framework for the 

management of the entity’s short, 

medium and long-term funding and 

liquidity management requirements. The 

entity manages liquidity risk by 

maintaining adequate reserves, banking 

facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, 

by continuously monitoring forecast  

and actual cash flows and matching  

the maturity profiles of financial assets 

and liabilities. 

 Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables

 The entity ensures that it has sufficient 

cash on demand or access to facilities to 

meet expected operational expenses 

through the use of cash flow forecasts.

 The following tables detail the entity’s 

remaining contractual maturity for its 

non-derivative financial liabilities. The 

tables have been drawn up based on the 

undiscounted cash flows of financial 

liabilities based on the earliest date on 

which the entity can be required to pay. 

The table includes both interest and 

principal cash flows. 

Description
Note
ref in
AFS

Average
effective
Interest 

Rate

Total
6 Months

or less
6 - 12

Months
1 - 2

Years
2 - 5
Years

More 
than

5 Years

# % R R R R - R

31 March 2019

Non-interest Bearing 0,00% 628 504 628 504 - - - -

628 504 628 504 - - - -

31 March 2018 - - - -

Non-interest Bearing 0,00% 647 841 647 841

647 841 647 841 - - - -

The following table details the entity’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets.  
The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial 
assets including interest that will be earned on those assets except where the entity anticipates that the 
cash flow will occur in a different period.
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Description
Note
ref in
AFS

Average
effective
Interest 

Rate

Total
6 Months

or less
6 - 12

Months
1 - 2

Years
2 - 5
Years

More 
than

5 Years

# % R R R R - R

31 March 2019

Non-interest Bearing 0,00% 199 646 199 646 - - - -

Variable Interest Rate 
Instruments

3,12% 110 047 110 047 - - - -

309 693 309 693 - - - -

31 March 2018 - - - -

Non-interest Bearing 0,00% 314 993 314 993

Variable Interest Rate 
Instruments

5,14% 788 551 788 551

1 103 545 1 103 545 - - - -

29.9 Other Price Risk

 The entity is not exposed to equity price 

risks arising from equity investments as 

the entity does not trade these 

investments. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019



115

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD | ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 All Related Party Transactions are conducted at arm’s length, unless stated otherwise. 

30.1 Relationships

Members Refer to members' report note

South African National Defence Force SANDF

General Support Base Western Cape GSB

Department of Military Veterans DMV

Iziko Museums of South Africa Iziko

Castle Military Museum Foundation CMMF

The executive authority responsible for the Castle Control Board is the Minister of Defence and Military 
Veterans. All departments and public entities under the control of this Minister are related parties.

30.2 Related Party balances & Transactions

2019
R

2018
R

Related Party Balances:

DMV (Donation - assets) 3 102 245 -

GSB Western Cape - (30 000)

Related Party Transactions:

DMV (Donation) (3 102 245) -

GSB Western Cape (Income) - (83 100)

GSB Western Cape (Transfers 70 000 112 970

South African National Defence Force:

Payment for use of fixed telephone lines 618 1 180

The South African National Defence Force has seconded military personnel to assist with the  
Castle Military Museum. The SANDF carries the cost for the seconded personnel. The value  
for these services for the year is about R861 032 (2018: R773 254).

GSB Western Cape currently operates Het Bakhuys at the Castle of Good Hope for the benefit of the 
Combined Officers’ Club (non-public funds). 

The expenditure transactions represent rentals for the use of the Het Bakhuys by end-user clients, which 
were facilitated by the CCB. The income represents rentals earned by the CCB from Het Bakhuys.

The Castle Military Museum Foundation is an inter vivos trust established by the Castle Military Museum as 
a fundraising vehicle for the continuing support of the museum. The museum acts as a custodian for  
all artefacts acquired through the foundation.

The DMV donated the furniture and equipment at the Conference centre to the CCB. This donation was 
accounted for in terms of GRAP 23 and has in effect contributed to the increase in the surplus and the 
assets for the financial year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
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30.3 Member’s emoluments

 No emoluments were paid to Board members for their services during the year. Audit 

Committee members were remunerated for attending audit committee meetings as they are 

not employed by the state. 

2019
R

2018
R

Non-executive

Adv D. Mitchell 12 951 18 920

Ms C. de Vries 10 476 9 184

Adv J. Niekerk 5 238 11 480

Mr E Bruttoh 2 619 9 184

31 284 48 768

30.4 Compensation of Related Parties

 Compensation of Key management personnel is disclosed in note 16 to the Annual Financial 

Statement. 

31 IN-KIND DONATIONS AND ASSISTANCE

 The entity received an In-kind donation to the amount of R800 during the year under 

review (refer to note 15). 

 The entity received the following in-kind assistance from the Department of Defence: 

(i) Office space accommodation within the  

Castle of Good Hope, used by the CCB employees. 239 400 270 000

 In terms of GRAP 23 the office space occupied by CCB employees has been recognised 

both as an income and as an expense.

(ii) The entity received an in-kind donation of assets in the conference centre from the 

DMV. These assets were accounted for as donations in the Statement of Financial 

Performance.

 These assets comprise of Property, plant and equipment at R 2 881 830 and Intangible 

assets at R 220 415.
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32 PRIOR PERIOD ERROR

 Services-in-kind

 During the 2019 financial period it was discovered that the 2018 financial statements were 

misstated. The entity did not recognise the services-in-kind income of R 270 000 and 

corresponding expenditure of R 270 000 in the statement of financial performace. 

 The correction of a prior period error had no effect on the 2018 accumulated surplus. 

Statement of financial performance for the 
year ended 31 March 2018

Balance as  
previously 
 reported

Prior period 
error

Restated  
balance

Donations 700 270 000 270 700

Venue rental expense (7 356) (270 000) (277 356)

Statement of financial position as at  
31 March 201

Net asstets:

Accumulated surplus 1 545 825 - 1 545 825

33 PRIVATE PUBLIC PARTNERSHIPS
 The entity was not a party to any Private Public Partnerships during the year under review.

34 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
 There were no reportable events after the reporting date. 
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35 GOING CONCERN ASSESSMENT
 Management considered the following 

matters relating to the Going Concern.

(i) On 10 March 2016 the Board adopted 

the 2016/17 to 2018/19 Budget. This 

three-year Medium Term Revenue 

and Expenditure Framework 

(MTREF) to support the ongoing 

delivery of services to the public 

reflected that the Budget was not 

cash-backed for the 2018/19 period 

due to the depletion of the historical 

surplus. 

(ii) The entity’s Budget is subjected to a 

very rigorous independent assess-

ment before it is ultimately approved 

by the Board. 

(iii) Strict daily cash management 

processes are embedded in the 

entity’s operations to manage and 

monitor all actual cash inflows and 

cash outflows in terms of the cash-

flow forecast supporting the Budget. 

The cash management processes is 

complemented by monthly and 

quarterly reporting, highlighting  

the actual cash position, including 

the associated risks and remedial 

actions to be instituted. 

(vi) The CCB is projecting growth in the 

high profile events to be held at the 

Castle. This will negate the slow 

growth in the tourism sector, and will 

help improve the CCB’s ability to 

meet its short term obligations as 

they become due. 

(v) The surplus in the financial statements 

is due to the in-kind donation of 

assets received from the DMV. Taking 

this into account, a material 

uncertainty exisits that may cast 

significant doubt on the entity’s 

ability to continue as a going 

concern. 

(vi) In spite of the going concern 

uncertainty indicated above, the CCB 

projects a savings of R 1 220 328 from 

non-replacement of staff members 

who have resigned. The positions will 

be filled from within the existing staff 

members, where necessary. 

 Taking the aforementioned into account, 

the Annual Financial Statements have 

been prepared on the Going Concern 

Basis. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019
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Festivals and markets like these, provide opportunities for entrepreneurs  
and create job opportunities.





Casteel De Goede Hoop
c/o Castle And Darling Streets,
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